
  

 

Meeting of the  
 

HEALTH SCRUTINY 
PANEL 

______________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 26 October 2010 at 6.30 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
Room M72, 7th Floor Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 

London, E14 2BG 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 

Chair: Councillor Tim Archer  
Vice-Chair: Councillor Rania Khan   
  
Councillor Shelina Aktar 
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Councillor Kosru Uddin 
 

Councillor Dr. Emma Jones, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer) 
Councillor Mohammed Abdul Mukit MBE, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillors Shelina Akhtar, Abdul Asad, 
Alibor Choudhury, Rania Khan, Lutfur 
Rahman and Kosru Uddin) 
Councillor Anna Lynch, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Rania 
Khan, Shelina Aktar, Abdul Asad, Alibor 
Choudhury, Lutfur Rahman and Kosru 
Uddin) 
Councillor Lesley Pavitt, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Rania 
Khan, Shelina Aktar, Abdul Asad, Alibor 
Choudhury, Lutfur Rahman and Kosru 
Uddin) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 
 
Co-opted Members:  



 
 
 
 
  
Myra Garrett – (THINk) 
Dr Amjad Rahi – (THINk) 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Zoe Folley, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4877, E-mail: zoe.folley@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL  
 

Tuesday, 26 October 2010 
 

6.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 8  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of Health 
Scrutiny Panel held on 27th July 2010.  
 

  

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

  

4.1 Access to GP services – the Ocean Estate - NHS Tower 
Hamlets - Verbal Update.   

 

  

4.2 Joint Report on Complaints across the three local 
Trusts - NHS Tower Hamlets   

 

9 - 22  

4.3 East London and City Alliance Commissioning 
Strategy Plan Update - NHS Tower Hamlets   

 

23 - 44  

4.4 THINk Patient and User Comments Report and 
Recommendations 2010 - Presentation   

 

  

4.5 Update on Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - 
Briefing and Presentation   

 

45 - 66  

4.6 Health Scrutiny Panel  Work Programme   
 

67 - 76  

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

  

5.1 Update on:1) INEL JOSC 2) Polysystems Challenge 
Session Report   

 

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\3\8\AI00025834\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  
 

ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 
not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\3\8\AI00025834\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 27/07/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 27 JULY 2010 
 

GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOM OF BURDETT HOUSE, MILE END 
HOSPITAL. 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Tim Archer (Chair) 
 
Councillor Shelina Aktar 
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor Kosru Uddin 
Myra Garrett 
 
  
 
Other Councillors Present: 
Nil 
  
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
Myra Garrett – (THINk) 

 
Guests Present: 
Paul James – (East London NHS Foundation Trust) 
Graham Simpson – (Barts & the London NHS Trust) 
Ben Vinter – Head of Corporate Affairs, NHS Tower Hamlets 
John Wilkins – East London NHS Foundation Trust 
Jane McClean – (Associate Director Commissioning, NHS Tower 

Hamlets) 
 

Officers Present: 
 
Rachael Chapman – (Strategy & Policy Officer) 
Deborah Cohen – (Service Head, Commissioning and Strategy, 

Adults Health and Wellbeing) 
Katie McDonald – (Scrutiny Policy Officer, Scrutiny & Equalities , 

Chief Executive's) 
Hafsha Ali – (Acting Joint Service Head Scrutiny & Equalities, 

Chief Executive's) 
 

Alan Ingram – (Democratic Services) 
 
 

COUNCILLOR TIM ARCHER (CHAIR) IN THE CHAIR 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 27/07/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Alibor 
Choudhury, Rania Khan and Lutfur Rahman and Dr Amjad Rahi, Co-opted 
Member. 
 
The Chair added that he would have to leave after consideration of the first 
agenda item, owing to other meeting commitments, following which Councillor 
Abdul Asad would chair the Panel for the remainder of the meeting. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 22 June 2010 were agreed 
as a correct record, subject to the inclusion of Dr Ian Basnett, Director of 
Public Health, Tower Hamlets, and Mr John Wilkins, East London NHS 
Foundation Trust, in the list of those present. 
 
 

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

5.1 NHS White Paper  
 
Mr Ben Vinter, Head of Corporate Affairs, NHS Tower Hamlets, provided a 
brief to Members including a tabled update document summarising the new 
Government’s White Paper and some of its key proposals.  These included 
measures to improve outcomes to the level of the best in the world; giving 
patients increased choice about where and how they are treated; 
improvements to the commissioning of healthcare services; the development 
of all NHS trusts to foundation status by 2014; new roles for local authorities.  
Mr Vinter added that Panel Members were invited to consider the changes 
proposed and an in-depth presentation would be made in October.  
 
Ms M. Garrett referred to the Department of Health Document “Liberating the 
NHS” and it was agreed that Ms Katie McDonald, Scrutiny Policy Officer, 
provide copies for all Panel Members. 
 
At 6.45 p.m. Councillor Tim Archer left the meeting. 
 

COUNCILLOR ABDUL ASAD IN THE CHAIR 
 

Discussion ensued on how local links could feed into the consultation 
programme on the White Paper and Mr Vinter expressed support for the 
Chair’s suggestion that the matter could be addressed through the Council’s 
LAP programme. 
 

Page 4



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 27/07/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

It was agreed that Ms Hafsha Ali, Acting Joint Service Head Scrutiny & 
Equalities, would consider how her service might assist in facilitating the 
White Paper consultation processes locally.  
 
 

5.2 Six Lives Panel Project - NHS London Health Self-Assessment  
 
Ms Jane McClean, Associate Director Commissioning, NHS Tower Hamlets, 
introduced her report relating to both the Six Lives Panel Project and the 
subsequent NHS London health self-assessment for learning difficulties.  She 
indicated that the Rix Centre had been commissioned to produce a DVD in 
response to the Ombudsman’s recommendations following the Mencap’s 
Death by Indifference report (also known as Six Lives). This process enabled 
service users with learning difficulties and carers to recount their experiences 
in accessing relevant services. This was aimed at identifying gaps in service 
provision.  The Panel then proceeded to view a DVD showing excerpts of the 
project. 
 
Ms McClean also tabled documents regarding the Rating At A Glance (RAG) 
assessment that had also been submitted as part of the NHS London health 
self-assessment, and an action plan which had subsequently been developed 
in order to ensure people with learning difficulties were able to access 
mainstream health services. This work was being taken forward by the 
Healthy Lives Sub Group of the Borough’s Learning Disabilities Partnership 
Board.    
 
Discussion ensued on the tabled information, which was broadly felt too 
detailed for immediate comments to be made. Ms Katie McDonald, Scrutiny 
Policy Officer, commented that the information had not been available in time 
to distribute with the meeting agenda. It was agreed that Ms McDonald pass 
on to Ms McClean any comments that Members may wish to make on the 
RAG plans. 
  
 

5.3 Health Scrutiny Evaluation - Summary and Action Plan  
 
Ms Katie McDonald, Scrutiny Policy Officer, introduced the report containing 
the Summary and Action Plan in response to the Health Scrutiny Evaluation 
conducted by Mr Tim Young in January and February 2010, the Final 
Evaluation Report having been considered by the Panel in March 2010.  She 
added that many of the action plan points would be ongoing throughout the 
year. 
 
Ms Hafsha Ali, Acting Joint Service Head Scrutiny & Equalities, commented 
that it was recognised that Health Scrutiny had a powerful role to play for 
health issues in Tower Hamlets and there were many practical actions to be 
taken.  However, the Panel’s functions were very broad in nature and there 
needed to be a closer focus on particular issues and change the culture of 
meetings, so as to be able to maximise the potential of the Panel. 
 
The Action Plan was agreed as put forward.  

Page 5



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 27/07/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
5.4 Health Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2010/11 - 2011- 2012  

 
Ms Katie McDonald, Scrutiny Policy Officer, introduced the report outlining the 
draft two year work programme for the Health Scrutiny Panel for municipal 
years 2010/11 and 2011/12.  She pointed out that some updating of the draft 
would be required, with particular reference to maternity services and facilities 
for adults with learning difficulties.  Challenge sessions would be held later in 
the year in connection with Polysystems and Reconfiguration of Local 
Services (November); also the development of cancer preventative services 
(December). 
 
Mr Ben Vinter, Head of Corporate Affairs, NHS Tower Hamlets, welcomed the 
dialogue with Councillors and indicated that the PCT found the challenge 
sessions helpful and supported this approach.  They were also investigating 
how best to be able to spread dialogue to include local communities. 
 
Members referred to possible problems caused by language barriers between 
GPs and patients and the fundamental changes that were intended for the 
NHS by the new Government. 
 
It was agreed: 
 
(1) that options for managing the work programme be approved; 
(2) that the work programme be reviewed every quarter. 

 
5.5 Health for North East London - Response to INEL JOSC 

recommendations  
 
Ms Katie McDonald, Scrutiny Policy Officer, indicated that the circulated 
reports were intended as information and a reference for Members, 
comprising: 

• The response from Health for North East London (Programme Team) 
to the Inner North East London Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Report. 

• The independent Integrated Impact Assessment undertaken by Mott 
MacDonald and Public Health Action Support Team. 

 
She added that these would be the subject of more work by the Panel later in 
the year. 
 
In response to queries Mr Ben Vinter, Head of Corporate Affairs, NHS Tower 
Hamlets, stated that consultation responses and evidence base contributing 
towards the programme’s recommendations were to be retested over the 
summer due to requirements set by the new Government and outcomes were 
expected in the autumn. 
 
The report was noted.  
 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  

Page 6



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 27/07/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

 
6.1 Improving Physical Access 
 
Mr Brian Harvey, a Trust Member of the East London NHS Foundation Trust, 
circulated a document promoting the provision of mixed forms of seating in 
public buildings to meet the needs of individuals with particular needs and 
also information produced by RNIB Access Consultancy Services concerning 
colour schemes designed to assist people with visual problems.  
 
Following discussion of the issues involved, it was agreed that the matter be 
included on the Panel agenda for 26 October 2010 and that, in the meantime, 
liaison take place between Ms Hafsha Ali’s service, the Corporate Equality 
Group and Equalities Officer to explore possible action that might be taken. 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.00 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Tim Archer 
Health Scrutiny Panel 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
26 October 
2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
2  
 
 

Report of:  
 
 
NHS Tower Hamlets 
Community Health Services  
East London Foundation Trust 
Barts and the London NHS Trust  
 
 
Presenting Officers: 
 
Caroline Alexander - Director of Quality 
Development (NHS TH) 
Anneliese Weichart – Associate Director for 
Clinical Governance and Workforce 
(Community Health Services) 
Judith Bottriell – Associate Director of Quality 
Improvement (BLT)   
Christine Bevan-Davies, Quality and 
Effectiveness Manager (BLT) 
Paul James - Acting Borough Director (ELFT) 
 

Title:  
 
Joint Report on Complaints across the three local 
Trusts 
 
Ward(s) affected:  
 
All  

 
 
1. Summary 
 
This presentation covers the key complaints issues at the three local health 
Trusts and has been put together jointly with BLT, ELFT and CHS.  The 
presentation puts the number of complaints received into context and 
discusses the changes that have been made as a result.  
 
2. Recommendations 

 
The Health Scrutiny Panel is asked to consider and comment on the 
information set out in the presentation.  
 
 
  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



��
��
���
�	
��
���

��

�
�
	�

�
��
��
�

��
��
�

�
�

���

��

�
��
��
��
	

��
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
��
��
�

Page 11



��
�
	�

�
��
��
��
�

��

��
��

Page 12



��
�
	�

�
��
��
��

�
��
� 
��
��
��

�
��

��
��

�	

�

��


�

��

	

�

�

��
�

��
	�

�

�


	�

�

!

��
��

�
 �
"�
��

#�
� 

��
�$
�%

&�
'(
��
��

�)
�*

�

��
�
�
��

���
��
�

���

�
��
��
�

��

��
�+

&,
�(
$,
�

�)
��
*

-

��
�#
��

 �
��

.�
��

 

���

��
"�
��
�

//
+

�'
�(
'/
&

�)
�$
*

Page 13



��
�


��
��

��

!

��
��

�
 �
"�
��

#�
� 

��
��

�
�
��

�


�
��
��

�
 �

�
���
� 

��
0,
�1
+

��
*
�2�
��
���
��
��
��
��

�
�

'*
��
� 

��
2��
�2�
�


�
��

�
 �
 �

�

�
� 

3
�

4�
��
��
�

� 

�

���
�


�
���
�

��

��
��0
�,
*
1%

5
		

��
��
�
��
��
�

���
�

��
0�
�*

1%

��
�
�
��

���
��
�

���

�
��
��
�

��

5
��
���

 �
��
,*

��0
�&
��
�1
�%

��
��
�


�
�


�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�*

�0�
&�
��
1�+

5
		

��
��
�
��
��
��
�*

��0
�&
��
�1
�%

-

��
�#
��

 �
��

.�
��

 

���

��
"�
��
�

6
� 
�


�
��
��
0�
�*

1+
��

2
2�

��
���

 �
�0�
&*

1%
7

���

��
�	
��
	�
��
��

�
 �
��
	�
��
��
�0�
*
1%

7�
��



��

�
 �
 �
4�
���
�0�
*
1+

��
�
�
��

�


�
��
��
0�
*
1+

Page 14



��

�
4�
��
�

 
��

�
�

���

��
���
�2
�

0!
#"
18

•�
��

��
���

��
�


��

�

	�
�


�

�	


�
��

��
!

��
��

�
 �
"�
��
#�
� 
��

�9
�
��
"�
��
�:
��
9
��
��
�4
(�6

� 
;
�2�
��
�

� 
�5
���
� 
��
�

���

�7
��
2�
��
��
�

��
���
�

	

��
��
��
��
	�
;
���

�9
�
��
"�
;
��
��

�

��
��
(��
��

�
��

���
��
�

���

��
��
��

�
�(
��

�
��

���
2��

��
�
��
���
�<
��
�

���

��

�
��

�
�(
��
���
�

=
��
��
��
���
(�!

�
��
�

� 
�"
��
�#
��
 �
��
�

��

��
��
2�6

� 
�

��
��

�
 �
3
��
���
��
�1
�


�
��
>�

��
��
� 
��
��
�	
�
��
��	

��
4�

�

�
��
2�

�
��
��
4�
��

��
��

�	
��

��
�	


�

�

	�
��


��

	

��

�	


�
��



�
��

��
��

��

�
�	

�
���

2��
��

�

�
�4
���

��
��
��

�
��	

�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�(
���
��
��
��
4�
2�
��
�

���
�


�
���

�

��
;

�
 �
� 
�	

�
��

��
��
)

��
�


���

�


�
��

��
��

�
7�
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
��
��

�
�;
���

���
	�

�
�
	�

�
��
�8
��1
�

��

�


�
��
4�
��
��
=
��
���
�1�
��

�
�
��
�


�
��
��
���
1�5

		
��
��
�
��
��


�

��

��
���
�

��
�
	�

�
��
��
;
��
��
��
��
 �
��
��
�2�

���
��
�#
-5

9
�	

�
�;


�
�2�

��
��

2
2�;

��
�;
��
��
��
�	
��
��
 �
�

�4
��

 �
��
��
�

�(
�;
���

�

��
��
��
;
��
2��
��
�

��
��
�

��

�
 �



���

��
(��
�

��
 �
�4

 
•

��
�
	�
��
��
�

���

��
�

�
��
��
���
���
��
� 
�

��
4�
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
�2
� 
�

��
��
�


�
 �
�
��
�

4�
��
�

� 
�

•
7�
��
��
��
 �
�

��
��
��
�2
�	

�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
4�
��

�
��
�

���
��
�	
��

��
��
��

��
��
���
��
�

 �
�2
� 
� 
�


�
� 
�?
��
��
�4
��
��
��
�
�

	�
��
��
0�
��
�

�

 �

��
)��

��
��
��
�2
��
�

22
���


�
��
��
 1
)��
@�
 �

�
��
��
2�
��

�&
$*

���
�'
,*

�A
�

�4
>�
	B

�

��
)

•
��

�
��

�
�

���



C�
�4
�

  
��
��
� 
�

� 
�?
��

C
��
���

��

�
��
� 

�
•

@�
 �

�
��
��
��
�DE
.�
��
�

��

��
��;


�
���

4�
���

��
�;
���

�

��
�;

��
��
��
�
�2�

�� 
���


�
�

��
2�
��

�
�2�
��

���
��

�
��
�

�0�
���
��;

��
C�
�4
�;
���

�F
7�
	

���

��
��
��
;

�
 �

�&
>;
��
C�

	

��
;

�
1

•
��
�
��
�5
�

��
��
��
�


C
��
4�

�
 �
���

��
��
� 
�

� 

•
9
��
��
�4
��
�

���

2�
��

�
��
�


C
��
4�

�
 �

�
��
;
�	
��

�
��
�2�

��
2�
���
;
>�
	�


	
	�

��
��

��
��

Page 15



��

�
4�
��

�
�

���

��
���
�2
��
�
�8

•!

�
��

�

�
4�
�4
�2


�
���
��
��
��

���
��
6
���
��
� 
��
���

•
5;


�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��

��
�!
��
4

���

�
���

��
�

2�
���

��
��
�

•
D�
� 
�	
��
�

��

�
��

�


�
��
��
��

�
��
�4
�

� 

�

�
��
��

��
�

;

�
��
��
��
��

�
��
�4
�2�

��2
��
��
���
��

��

2
2

Page 16



��

�
4�
��

�
�

���

��
���
�2
�0-
#.
"1
8

•@
��
��
;
��
2�"
��
��
:�
�

 �

��
��
��

�
��
��
	�
�

��
��
��
��
���

��
�
�

 �
�2
�

5
 �

��
��
��

�
��
��
� 
��
��2
��
 �
��
� 
�2�

��	

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
2�
��

� 
���
�

���
�
��
��

;

�
��
2�

���



�

��
��
 �

	
	�

��
��

��
��
(��
��
��
��
���

��
	�
��

��

�
 �
��
���
��
��
(�


�
 �

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

4�
)

•"
��
�"
��
��
:�
�A
��
��
	�
��
��
B
	�
��
�

��
�

�
��
 �
 �
��
���

�
� 
��
��



��

	�
�

� 
��
��
�2�

���
�

22
(��
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�4
���


�
��
� 
��
��

�
;

�
 (
�


�
��
;
��

�
�
� 
�

� 
��
��
��
�

��
 �
��
���

��
��
;
��
��
��
��

�
��
�)

•F

	
���
��
��
��

�
�	
��
��
��
��

���
���

��
��
�2
�	
��
�

��
�(
�	
��

�
 �
��
��

�
 �

4�
� 
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�4
��
 �
��
��
��
��
��
��
�4
�

  
��
��
� 
)

Page 17



!	
�


�

	�

"

�#

�

$�

�"
��

�	
�



$
��

"�
�


��
��

"	

�

��

�

��
�


��
�

�
��

�

�


%
�	

�

#


��
��

��
��

G
��
��
�!
���
��
��

,�
*

,�
*

D�
2�
��


�
��
��
��

��

�

�
�

��
�

9
��
��
�

��
 �

,'
*

,'
*

�
��
��
�5
��

�
�

&*
�0�

��5
��

�
�!
��
���
��

!

�4
�

 �
��
1

��
*

�
��
��
�!
�


C
�

,*
�)
$*

G
��
��
��
��
��
��
D�
��
��

/*
$*

�
��
��
��
��
� 
�

�*
�)
$*

!

�4
�

 �
��
�

��
��

�
��
�

�)
$*

�
��
��
��
��
��

�




��
4�
��
�

�*
�)
$*

Page 18



�
	�
��
�4
��
	�
��
��

�
�
	�

�
��
��
	�
�

��
�

!	
�


�

	�

"

�#

�

$�

�"
��

��
�

�
��

�

�


#�
	�


#



��
��

��
��

�	
�



$
��

"�
�


��
��

"	

�

��



��
��




•A
��
���
��
�;
�

���
��

���
��
CB

��

2
��
�

•-

�
��
��

 
��
��
��
��
��
2�

��

2
��
�

•#
�

��
��
��
�;

��
2��
��
��

�

•-
�

�
�

•.

�

•��
��
��
��

•G
��
��
��

•7
��



���
��
��
4

4�
�
��
��

;
���

���
4�
�

��;


�
 �
��
��

 �
•F
7�
���
C�
	�
�H
�

�

•#
��
C�
�;
���

�

��

�
��

���
�

��
4

��
�

���

��
�

� 

�4
��
�	

�

•-
�

�
�

•D
��
��
��
�

•'
���

��
	�

��
��
���
��

•�

�
���



C�
2�
���

��
���
��
��
��

•.

�

•.
��
�	
��
��

  

��
��

•A
��
���
��
�;
�

���
��

���
��
CB

��

2
��
�

•"

�
4�
��
 �

�
�
�
��

���
�

��
��
��

•�
��

��
��
��
��

•3
E3

�2�
��
��
��
��
;
���

�
��

�
��
�4
� 
��

�
���
���

�

•.
��
�	
��

��
•.
��
�	
��
�

•#
�

2��
��
�

� 

�	
��
��
��
���
��


�
��;


�
 �
� 
�	
��
�0

� 

���
 1

•6
��
���

4�
�;
���

��
��
��

�
�

��
��
��

�
�	

�
���

2��
��
�

��
��
��
���

��
�2
���

��
��


�
�
	�

�
��

Page 19



�
�
��
 �
�

�
�


�
��

�
��

��
�


�&

�

	�
��

�#
��

�

��

#�
�"

!

��
��

�
 �
"�
��
#�
� 

��
$�

�

��
�
�
��

���
��
�

���

��
��
��

�
�

$
�

-

��
�#
��

 �
��
.�
��

 

���

��
"�
��
�

�
�

Page 20



�
��
�

���
��
��

��
�

��
�
	�

�
��
��
��

�
�
��
4�
�
��
��

�
�
	�
��

��
		
��
���
��
��
��

�
�
�
��
���

5	
	�
�	

��

��
���

��
��
��

�
5<

-
3
��

�

�
4�
�	
�

��
��
4�

�
 �
��

��
��

6
��

���
��
�4
��
�

�

��

�
��
��
��

��
4

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
26 October 
2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
3 
 
 

Reports of:  
 
NHS Tower Hamlets 
 
Presenting Officer:  
 
Alan Steward  
Deputy Director  
Delivery Directorate  
 

Title:               
 
East London and City Alliance Commissioning 
Strategy Plan Update  
 
Ward(s) affected:  
 
All  

 
 
1. Summary 
 
The attached presentation provides a summary of the progress in developing NHS Tower 
Hamlets’ contribution towards the East London and City Alliance Commissioning Strategic 
Plan (CSP).  It updates on the financial and activity modelling, the QIPP (Quality, Innovation, 
Prevention and Productivity) assessment and the impact of our current CSP initiatives to 
both address the QIPP and financial gap. 
 
The financial and activity modelling identifies a gap of £30.4m in 12/11 with a cumulative gap 
of £72.0m by 14/15.   
 
The QIPP assessment highlights key issues around: 
• Improving primary care quality and access  
• Improved delivery of integrated care outside hospital  
• Cancer 
• Acute performance and productivity  
• Improving Mental Health  
• Maternity/obstetrics  
• Patient Experience/involvement  
 
Our review of our current initiatives demonstrates that with redesign on some initiatives, they 
are tackling the identified QIPP gaps and contributing to closing the financial gap.   
 
A substantial financial gap remains however and further work is proposed to bridge this gap. 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
The Health Scrutiny Panel is asked to consider and comment on the proposals set out in the 
presentation.  

Agenda Item 4.3

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

20
11

/1
2 

–
20

14
/1

5
U

pd
at

e

H
ea

lth
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
26

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

0

Page 25



T
h

is
 p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

u
tl

in
es

2

•
O

u
r 

ex
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
 (

C
S

P
)

•
T

h
e 

ch
an

g
es

 f
ac

in
g

 t
h

e 
N

H
S

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 r

ef
re

sh
 t

h
e 

C
S

P

•
T

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y 
g

ap
s 

th
at

 f
ac

e 
T

o
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 a

n
d

 In
n

er
N

o
rt

h
 E

as
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

•
T

h
e 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 t
o

 c
lo

se
 t

h
o

se
 g

ap
s

•
O

p
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 t

o
 c

lo
se

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 g
ap

•
O

u
r 

co
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
p

la
n

s 
an

d
 f

ee
d

b
ac

k 
to

 d
at

e

•
O

u
r 

n
ex

t 
st

ep
s

Page 26



K
ey

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 d

riv
er

s
•

he
al

th
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
va

ria
tio

ns
 o

f c
ar

e 
ex

is
t

•
R

el
y 

on
 th

e 
hi

gh
-c

os
t h

os
pi

ta
l s

et
tin

g 
fo

r 
ou

tp
at

ie
nt

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
•

U
nd

er
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

pr
im

ar
y 

ca
re

•
A

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 g

ap

“is
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 fo
r 

ev
er

yo
ne

 w
ho

 
liv

es
 a

nd
 w

or
ks

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
by

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
O

ne
 

T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
.”

O
ur

 V
is

io
n

!
R

ed
uc

in
g 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

in
 h

ea
lth

!
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 u

se
 

se
rv

ic
es

!
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s

!
P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
, c

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l b
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s
!

In
ve

st
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y

O
ur

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

A
im

s

W
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 la
st

 y
ea

r’
s 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

 (
C

S
P

) 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 o
u

r 
Jo

in
t 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

el
lb

ei
n

g
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

3

Page 27



+

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
o

u
r 

F
iv

e 
Y

ea
r 

st
ra

te
g

y

O
u

r 
H

ea
lt

h
 N

ee
d

s

L
o

n
g

 T
er

m
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h

E
n

d
 o

f 
L

if
e 

C
ar

e

S
ta

yi
n

g
 H

ea
lt

h
y

C
lin

ic
al

 P
at

h
w

ay
s

M
ile

 E
n

d
 H

o
sp

it
al

H
u

b N
et

w
o

rk

H
o

m
e

A
cu

te

S
ys

te
m

 R
ec

o
n

fi
g

u
re

d

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

H
ea

lt
h

S
er

vi
ce

s

C
ar

e 
C

lo
se

r 
2 

H
o

m
e

A
cu

te
 / 

P
B

C

S
ta

yi
n

g
 h

ea
lt

h
y

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

es

O u t c o m e s

Im
p

ac
t

Im
p

ro
ve

d

H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

el
lb

ei
n

g

+
=

C
ar

e 
C

lo
se

r 
to

 H
o

m
e

M
at

er
n

it
y 

&
 N

ew
b

o
rn

C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le

U
n

sc
h

ed
u

le
d

 C
ar

e

S
ch

ed
u

le
d

 C
ar

e

+

M
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t

A
cc

es
s 

/ U
rg

en
t 

C
ar

e

A
ff

o
rd

ab
ili

ty

4

Page 28



S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ch

an
g

es
 h

av
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 t
h

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

o
u

r 
C

S
P

 s
o

 
th

at
 w

e 
re

p
ri

o
ri

ti
se

d
 o

u
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
an

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 o
u

r 
co

st
 

p
re

ss
u

re
s

5

Page 29



W
e 

ar
e 

n
o

w
 r

ef
re

sh
in

g
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

 (
C

S
P

) 
to

 2
01

4/
15

S
ta

ge
 1

: 
F

in
an

ce
 &

 
A

ct
iv

ity
 

M
od

el
lin

g

S
ta

ge
 2

:
C

lin
ic

al
 

C
as

e 
fo

r 
C

ha
ng

e

S
ta

ge
 3

: 
M

en
u 

of
 

O
pt

io
ns

S
ta

ge
 4

: 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

ns

S
ta

ge
 5

:
S

ig
n 

O
ff

•
U

pd
at

e 
ou

r 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

 o
n 

fin
an

ce
 a

nd
 

ac
tiv

ity
•

U
si

ng
 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 
fr

om
 N

H
S

-
Lo

nd
on

 a
bo

ut
 

lik
el

y 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 
pr

oj
ec

t t
he

 
fin

an
ci

al
 g

ap
  

ov
er

 n
ex

t 5
 

ye
ar

s

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 g
ap

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

•C
lin

ic
al

 q
ua

lit
y

•h
ea

lth
 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s

•P
at

ie
nt

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

•P
ro

du
ct

iv
ity

•P
at

ie
nt

 s
af

et
y

C
om

pa
rin

g 
ag

ai
ns

t L
on

do
n 

an
d 

na
tio

na
l 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 to
 

id
en

tif
y 

ke
y 

ar
ea

s

•
P

ro
du

ce
 a

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 a
nd

 
op

tio
ns

 th
at

 w
ill

 
cl

os
e 

th
e 

ga
p 

–
bo

th
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

an
d 

cl
in

ic
al

•
T

o 
de

liv
er

 
ch

oi
ce

 fo
r 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
cl

os
e 

th
e 

ga
p 

by
 1

20
%

•
S

ha
re

d 
w

ith
 

N
H

S
-L

on
do

n

•
D

et
ai

le
d 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

 
fo

r 
Y

ea
r 

1
•

O
ut

lin
e 

fo
r 

Y
ea

rs
 2

-4
•

S
ha

re
d 

w
ith

 
N

H
S

-L
on

do
n 

an
d 

P
ro

vi
de

rs
 

•
F

or
m

al
 S

ig
n 

of
f 

by
 1

7 
D

ec
•

D
et

ai
le

d 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

al
l 

in
iti

at
iv

es
.

•
F

or
 e

ac
h 

P
C

T
 

th
es

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

in
 th

e 
11

/1
2 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
P

la
n

C
om

pl
et

e

B
y 

17
 S

ep
B

y 
15

 O
ct

S
ep

 / 
O

ct
15

 N
ov

N
ov

 / 
D

ec

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

  E
ng

ag
em

en
t

(G
P

s,
 C

lin
ic

ia
ns

, C
ou

nc
il,

 T
H

IN
k)

6

Page 30



S
ta

g
e1

: 
T

h
e 

la
te

st
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n
 s

h
o

w
s 

a 
cu

m
u

la
ti

ve
 T

H
 g

ap
 o

f 
£7

2.
0m

 
b

y 
14

/1
5

£7
2.

0m
Y

ea
r

T
H

 C
o

st
 

£0
00

T
H

 R
ev

en
u

e
£0

00
D

if
f

£0
00

09
/1

0
£5

17
,6

93
£5

24
,4

46
£6

,7
53

10
/1

1
£5

34
,7

25
£5

41
,5

66
£6

,8
40

11
/1

2
£5

67
,4

55
£5

43
,8

89
-£

23
,5

66

12
/1

3
£5

84
,1

68
£5

55
,3

35
-£

28
,8

33

13
/1

4
£6

11
,7

31
£5

68
,8

46
-£

42
,8

84

14
/1

5
£6

54
,9

01
£5

82
,8

70
-£

72
,0

30

£3
0.

4m
Y

ea
r

T
H

 C
o

st
£0

00
T

H
 R

ev
en

u
e

£0
00

D
if

f
£0

00
09

/1
0

£5
17

,6
93

£5
24

,4
46

£6
,7

53
10

/1
1

£5
41

,4
78

£5
41

,5
66

£8
8

11
/1

2
£5

74
,2

95
£5

43
,8

89
-£

30
,4

07
12

/1
3

£5
60

,6
02

£5
55

,3
35

-£
5,

26
7

13
/1

4
£5

82
,8

98
£5

68
,8

46
-£

14
,0

52
14

/1
5

£6
12

,0
16

£5
82

,8
70

-£
29

,1
46

T
he

 g
ap

 a
cr

os
s 

In
ne

r 
N

or
th

 E
as

t L
on

do
n 

 is
 

£7
2.

5m

T
he

 g
ap

 a
cr

os
s 

In
ne

r 
N

or
th

 E
as

t L
on

do
n 

is
 

£2
60

.3
m

Im
pa

ct
 o

f d
ec

lin
e 

of
 h

ou
se

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

 -
re

ce
ss

io
n 

an
d 

pi
ck

s 
up

 fr
om

 1
2/

13

K
ey

 A
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s
•D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 g

ro
w

th
•I

nf
la

tio
n 

an
d 

 h
os

pi
ta

l t
ar

iff
s

•C
lin

ic
al

  c
ha

ng
es

•H
os

pi
ta

l L
en

gt
h 

of
 S

ta
y 

–
pr

ov
id

er
s 

in
 to

p 
qu

ar
til

e 
by

 2
01

7
•R

ed
uc

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

•L
on

do
n 

to
ps

lic
es

7

T
he

se
 a

re
 s

et
 b

y 
N

H
S

-L
on

do
n 

an
d 

ar
e 

lia
bl

e 
to

 c
ha

ng
e

Page 31



S
ta

g
e 

2:
 W

e’
ve

 c
o

m
p

ar
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
n

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

, q
u

al
it

y 
an

d
 n

ee
d

s 
to

 
h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
th

e 
ar

ea
s 

o
f 

g
re

at
es

t 
g

ai
n

. T
h

is
 h

as
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 is
su

es
 a

ro
u

n
d

 a
cu

te
 

o
ve

r 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, m

en
ta

l h
ea

lt
h

, a
cc

es
s 

an
d

 q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
p

ri
m

ar
y 

ca
re

, c
an

ce
r,

 
m

at
er

n
it

y 
an

d
 p

at
ie

n
t 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

T
he

 fi
na

l S
ec

to
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t i

s 
at

ta
ch

ed
 a

s 
A

pp
en

di
x 

1.
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
P

ro
ce

ss

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
!

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
ca

re
 q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 a
cc

es
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
be

tte
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f L
T

C
s,

 r
ed

uc
ed

 v
ar

ia
bi

lit
y 

&
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 

qu
al

ity

!
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 d
el

iv
er

y 
o

f 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
ca

re
 o

u
ts

id
e 

h
o

sp
it

al
–

P
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

be
tte

r 
al

ig
ne

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
ca

re
 in

 n
on

-a
cu

te
 s

et
tin

gs

!
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 s
cr

ee
n

in
g

, p
ub

lic
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
ea

rly
 d

et
ec

tio
n 

of
 

C
an

ce
r 

(e
.g

. C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 L
E

V
E

R
S

, P
R

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
, I

M
P

R
O

V
E

D
 

IN
T

E
G

R
A

T
E

D
 C

A
R

E
 P

A
T

H
W

A
Y

S
, I

T
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
S

, P
U

B
LI

C
 

&
 P

A
T

IE
N

T
 IN

V
O

LV
E

M
E

N
T

 &
 S

O
C

IA
L 

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

)

!
A

cu
te

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y

e.
g.

de
m

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

re
de

si
gn

 o
f 

U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
cl

in
ic

al
 p

at
hw

ay
s

(e
.g

. C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 L
E

V
E

R
S

, 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

IV
IT

Y
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 
P

A
T

H
W

A
Y

 R
E

D
E

S
IG

N
 

&
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 

A
D

M
IS

S
IO

N
S

 A
V

IO
D

A
N

C
E

 
S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IE
S

)

!
Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
-

pl
an

ni
ng

 fo
r 

th
e 

E
LF

T
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

(e
.g

. C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 
LE

V
E

R
S

 &
 

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 
P

A
T

H
W

A
Y

 
R

E
D

E
S

IG
N

) 

!
M

at
er

n
it

y/
o

b
st

et
ri

cs
–

pa
tie

nt
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 q

ua
lit

y;

(e
.g

. C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 L
E

V
E

R
S

, A
G

R
E

E
D

 R
IS

K
 S

T
R

A
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

, I
M

P
R

O
V

E
D

 IN
T

E
G

R
A

T
E

D
 C

A
R

E
 

P
A

T
H

W
A

Y
S

);
!

P
at

ie
n

t 
E

xp
er

ie
n

ce
/in

vo
lv

em
en

t
–

ne
ed

 to
 b

ui
ld

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 in

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
od

el
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

ca
re

 
pl

an
ni

ng
. 

(e
.g

. L
IN

k 
&

 W
ID

E
R

 P
U

B
LI

C
 &

 P
A

T
IE

N
T

 IN
V

O
LV

E
M

E
N

T
, P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 W

O
R

K
IN

G
 W

IT
H

 L
A

s 
&

 S
O

C
IA

L 
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
8

It
th

e 
in

it
ia

ti
ve

 
h

av
in

g
 t

h
e

d
es

ir
ed

/
in

te
n

d
ed

 
im

p
ac

t?

C
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
an

d 
fe

ed
 im

pa
ct

 in
to

 th
e 

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 A
ct

iv
ity

 m
od

el

Q
IP

P
 s

el
f-

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ag
ai

n
st

 
kn

o
w

n
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ta

rg
et

s

L
o

n
g

 li
st

o
f 

is
su

es

Is
 t

h
er

e 
an

 
in

it
ia

ti
ve

 
to

 a
d

d
re

ss
 

th
is

 is
su

e?

P
R

O
B

L
E

M
S

T
O

 B
E

 
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

E
D

P
ro

bl
em

 h
as

 y
et

 to
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

so
 r

em
ai

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 lo

ng
-li

st
 o

f 
is

su
es

 to
 b

e 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

.

Y
es

N
o

Y
es

N
o

Page 32



S
ta

g
e 

3:
 W

e 
h

av
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 a

n
d

q
u

al
it

y 
g

ap
s

W
e’

ve
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

al
l i

ni
tia

tiv
es

 th
at

 s
et

s 
ou

t:
•F

in
an

ci
al

 im
pa

ct
 -

co
st

s 
an

d 
sa

vi
ng

 –
ov

er
 n

ex
t f

iv
e 

ye
ar

s
•W

ha
t c

lin
ic

ia
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

th
in

k
•T

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

qu
al

ity
, p

at
ie

nt
 c

ho
ic

e,
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
pa

tie
nt

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

•H
ig

h 
le

ve
l m

ile
st

on
es

•R
is

k 
an

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n

9

Page 33



10

•
C

h
ild

 Im
m

s 
is

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

in
g

 h
er

d
 im

m
u

n
it

y
•

M
ee

ti
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
s 

o
n

 s
to

p
p

in
g

 s
m

o
ki

n
g

, o
b

es
it

y 
an

d
 b

re
as

t 
sc

re
en

in
g

•
H

o
sp

it
al

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
is

 g
re

at
er

 t
h

an
 p

la
n

n
ed

•
S

o
m

e 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

in
 lo

w
 c

lin
ic

al
 v

al
u

e 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 b

u
t 

w
it

h
in

 h
o

sp
it

al
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 
st

ill
 h

ig
h

•
A

ll 
n

et
w

o
rk

s 
sh

ow
in

g
 p

o
si

ti
ve

 im
p

ac
t 

o
n

 d
ia

b
et

es
 –

w
it

h
 m

o
re

 c
ar

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

an
d

 p
at

ie
n

ts
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 d

ia
b

et
es

•
N

H
S

 H
ea

lt
h

ch
ec

ks
 a

n
d

 H
yp

er
te

n
si

o
n

 g
o

n
e 

liv
e

•
P

ri
m

ar
y 

ca
re

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
h

as
 r

ed
u

ce
d

•
S

ec
o

n
d

ar
y 

ca
re

 n
o

t 
re

d
u

ce
d

 –
p

o
ss

ib
ly

 n
ew

 d
em

an
d

•
G

o
o

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 f
o

r 
so

m
e 

sp
ec

ia
lit

ie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

d
ia

b
et

es
 b

u
t 

m
o

re
 li

m
it

ed
 f

o
r 

o
th

er
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

U
ro

lo
g

y

•
T

im
et

ab
le

 s
h

o
rt

en
ed

 f
o

r 
E

n
d

 S
ta

te
 t

o
 1

 A
p

r 
11

 (w
as

 1
 A

p
r 

13
)

•
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
B

an
cr

o
ft

 U
n

it
 a

t 
M

ile
 E

n
d

 H
o

sp
it

al
 t

o
 r

ed
u

ce
 u

se
 a

n
d

 le
n

g
th

 o
f 

h
o

sp
it

al
 s

ta
y

•
G

P
 s

tr
ea

m
in

g
 a

w
ay

 f
ro

m
 A

&
E

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

•
N

ew
 U

rg
en

t 
C

ar
e 

C
en

tr
e 

at
 R

o
ya

l L
o

n
d

o
n

 o
n

 t
ra

ck
 

•
A

cc
es

s 
to

 G
P

s 
su

st
ai

n
ed

 d
es

p
it

e 
L

o
n

d
o

n
  /

 n
at

io
n

al
 d

ec
lin

e

•
B

as
e 

lin
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

cr
o

ss
 S

ec
to

r 
d

el
ay

ed
•

D
em

en
ti

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
fr

o
m

 1
 J

an
 1

0
•

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 c
ar

e 
o

n
 t

ra
ck

 a
n

d
 d

el
iv

er
in

g

•
C

o
st

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 m
o

re
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

in
 h

o
sp

it
al

s 
th

an
 p

la
n

n
ed

•
B

u
d

g
et

 r
ev

ie
w

 h
as

 r
el

ea
se

d
 £

3m

!
S

uc
ce

ss
fu

l
"

Li
m

ite
d

! ! !
"

!" " " "

O
u

r 
in

it
ia

ti
ve

s 
b

u
ild

 o
n

 o
u

r 
su

cc
es

se
s 

so
 f

ar
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
le

ss
o

n
s 

le
ar

n
t

Im
p

ac
t

S
ta

yi
ng

 
H

ea
lth

y

H
os

pi
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e

C
ar

e 
C

lo
se

r 
to

 H
om

e

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
ea

lth
 

S
er

vi
ce

s

U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

an
d 

 G
P

 
A

cc
es

s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

A
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

Page 34



11

T
h

e 
ei

g
h

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

 w
it

h
 e

n
ab

le
rs

 h
el

p
 c

lo
se

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 g
ap

 in
 

11
/1

2 
…

•
U

rg
en

t 
C

ar
e 

C
en

tr
e 

at
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
A

&
E

 a
t 

R
o

ya
l L

o
n

d
o

n
 H

o
sp

it
al

•
C

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 G
P

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 A
&

E
 a

tt
en

d
an

ce
s

•
A

im
 f

o
r 

ca
p

it
at

ed
 p

at
h

w
ay

•
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y 
le

ve
rs

•
M

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
se

 o
f 

B
an

cr
o

ft
 U

n
it

•
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

re
d

es
ig

n
ed

 w
it

h
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 f

o
u

r 
sp

ec
ia

lit
ie

s 
w

it
h

 in
cr

ea
se

d
 v

o
lu

m
e

•
A

im
 f

o
r 

ca
p

it
at

ed
 p

at
h

w
ay

s:
 w

h
er

e 
an

 a
n

n
u

al
 c

o
n

tr
ac

t 
va

lu
e 

is
 a

g
re

ed
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

p
ro

vi
d

er
s 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
at

 s
h

ar
in

g
 a

n
y 

su
rp

lu
s 

o
r 

lo
ss

•
R

ed
u

ce
d

 L
O

S
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

em
en

ti
a 

lia
is

o
n

•
R

ed
u

ce
d

 h
ig

h
 c

o
st

 o
u

t 
o

f 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
•

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ac
ro

ss
 S

ec
to

r

•
S

ec
to

r 
–

C
it

y 
an

d
 H

ac
kn

ey
, N

ew
h

am
 a

n
d

 T
o

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 –
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

an
d

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

es
 –

(E
L

C
A

)
•

F
u

rt
h

er
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
12

/1
3 

o
n

w
ar

d
s

•
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 L
o

n
g

 T
er

m
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t
•

D
ev

el
o

p
 f

o
u

r 
n

ew
 c

ar
e 

p
ac

ka
g

es
: 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 a

d
u

lt
s,

 c
h

ild
re

n
 (

0-
5 

),
 

C
ar

d
io

va
sc

u
la

r 
D

is
ea

se
 (

C
V

D
),

  C
O

P
D

 (
lu

n
g

s,
 b

re
at

h
in

g
)

•
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

an
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 h
o

sp
it

al
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 a
n

d
  s

to
p

p
in

g
 

P
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
o

f 
L

o
w

 C
lin

ic
al

 V
al

u
e

•
In

cr
ea

se
d

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l f

o
r 

G
P

s

•
C

an
ce

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y

•
R

ed
u

ce
d

 T
ee

n
ag

e 
P

re
g

n
an

cy
 b

u
d

g
et

•
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

su
cc

es
s 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

–
sm

o
ki

n
g

, o
b

es
it

y,
 b

re
as

t 
sc

re
en

in
g

11
/1
2

Co
st

!7
2.
1"

Sa
vi
ng
s

0.
0"

N
et

!7
2.
1"

Co
st

27
17

.6
"

Sa
vi
ng
s

45
52

.9
"

N
et

!1
83

5.
3"

Co
st

24
0.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

10
00

.0
"

N
et

!7
60

.0
"

Co
st

0.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

10
00

.0
"

N
et

!1
00

0.
0"

Co
st

0.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

60
00

.0
N
et

!6
00

0.
0"

Co
st

0.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

19
16

.0
"

N
et

!1
91

6.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

!1
00

0.
0

E
na

bl
er

s
•

E
st

at
e 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 t

o
 p

ri
m

ar
y 

ca
re

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
•

IT
 t

o
 h

el
p

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
o

ve
 o

f 
C

ar
e 

C
lo

se
r 

to
 H

o
m

e 
an

d
 N

et
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 G

P
 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

Co
st

65
2.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

5.
0"

N
et

64
7.
0"

A
ll 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
re

 la
te

st
 e

st
im

at
es

 a
nd

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e

Co
st

24
73

.2
"

Sa
vi
ng
s

21
58

.9
"

N
et

31
4.
3"

S
ta

yi
ng

 
H

ea
lth

y

H
os

pi
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e

C
ar

e 
C

lo
se

r 
to

 H
om

e

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
ea

lth
 

S
er

vi
ce

s

U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

an
d 

 G
P

 
A

cc
es

s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

A
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

F
ul

l f
iv

e 
ye

ar
 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 a

re
 

at
ta

ch
ed

 in
 th

e 
ap

pe
nd

ix
 fo

r 
al

l 
in

iti
at

iv
es

Page 35



b
u

t 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
in

it
ia

ti
ve

s 
le

av
e 

a 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 f

in
an

ci
al

 g
ap

 …
. 

14
/1

5
£m

11
/1

2
£m

12

7
2

3
.4

6
.8

8
.8

7
.6

3
1

7
.8

6
1

.9

3
3

.8

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

G
re

en
 –

ne
t s

av
in

g

R
ed

 –
ne

t c
os

t

3
0

.4

0
.1

1
0

.3
1

.8
0

.8
1

1
.9

6

0
.6

1
8

.3

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

Page 36



13

T
o

 c
lo

se
 t

h
e 

g
ap

 w
e 

h
av

e 
a 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s:

!
C

on
si

de
r 

m
or

e 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 to
 s

ee
k 

sa
vi

ng
s 

–
bu

t w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 th
e 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 th

at
 w

ill
 p

ro
du

ce
 th

e 
bi

gg
es

t s
av

in
gs

!
Q

ui
ck

en
 th

e 
pa

ce
 o

f i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 to

 d
riv

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
ou

t s
oo

ne
r 

fo
r

ex
am

pl
e 

ar
ou

nd
 L

on
g 

T
er

m
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 a
nd

 U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

–
bu

t t
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

pu
t t

he
ir 

su
cc

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

at
 r

is
k

!
S

to
p 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
m

e 
no

n-
m

an
da

to
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 p

oo
l o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

th
at

 c
an

 s
er

ve
 a

s 
“in

su
ra

nc
e”

so
 w

e 
ca

n 
de

liv
er

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t  

ne
ed

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
et

te
r,

 m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s

!
R

ed
uc

e 
sp

en
di

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 c
lo

se
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 g

ap

Page 37



3
0

.4
0

.1
1

0
.3

1
.8

0
.8

1
1

.9
6

0
.6

1
8

.3

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

11
/1

2
£m

D
ec

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
•

A
gr

ee
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
an

d 
cr

ite
ria

•
R

ev
ie

w
 a

ll 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

m
an

da
to

ry
 a

nd
 d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 fu
nd

in
g

•
A

im
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 £
10

m
 in

 2
01

1/
12

•
Lo

ng
 li

st
 to

 b
e 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
cr

ite
ria

•
Q

ua
lit

y 
–

m
in

im
um

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pa

tie
nt

 q
ua

lit
y

•
A

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 –

de
liv

er
s 

sa
vi

ng
s 

of
 >

£1
00

k
•

N
o 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
m

us
t-

do
 ta

rg
et

s 
 o

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 th

at
 m

at
te

rs
•

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

he
al

th
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
•

D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 in
 1

1/
12

•
G

P
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 b

ou
gh

t i
n

•
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 a

ll 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 b

ef
or

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

14

D
ec

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
T

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l g

ap
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 S
pe

nd
in

g 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r 
na

tio
na

l i
ni

tia
tiv

es
. 

S
to

p
p

in
g

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

so
m

e 
lo

w
er

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ill

 h
el

p
 c

lo
se

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 g

ap
 a

n
d

 d
el

iv
er

 in
ve

st
m

en
t

O
ve

r 
ne

xt
 tw

o 
w

ee
ks

Page 38



W
e 

ar
e 

co
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 in

vo
lv

e 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
s 

in
 d

ev
el

o
p

in
g

 o
u

r 
in

it
ia

ti
ve

s

S
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
s

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 / 

G
P

s

•
D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
on

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

m
ov

in
g 

ca
re

 c
lo

se
r 

to
 h

om
e 

w
ith

 w
or

ks
ho

p 
on

 1
2 

O
ct

ob
er

 to
 fi

na
lis

e
•

C
lin

ic
al

 A
dv

is
or

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
pa

pe
r

•
A

gr
ee

 o
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

•
B

oo
st

 a
cu

te
 c

on
tr

ac
t m

an
ag

em
en

t
•

A
gr

ee
d 

4 
sp

ec
ia

lit
ie

s 
to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 to
 m

ov
e 

C
ar

e 
C

lo
se

r 
to

 H
om

e
•

R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 a

ll 
G

P
s 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

st
ra

te
gy

P
C

T
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
C

lin
ic

al
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
G

ro
up

•
Q

ua
lit

y 
ga

p 
di

sc
us

si
on

 o
n 

22
 S

ep
te

m
be

r
•

C
om

m
en

ts
 fe

d 
in

to
 Q

ua
lit

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

P
C

T
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee

•
O

ut
lin

e 
of

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
t S

ep
te

m
be

r 
m

ee
tin

g
•

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 a

t 1
2 

O
ct

ob
er

 
m

ee
tin

g

•
F

ur
th

er
 w

or
k 

on
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 n
ee

de
d

T
H

IN
k 

(s
te

er
in

g 
co

m
m

itt
ee

)
•

T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t N
et

w
or

k 
(T

H
IN

k)
 S

te
er

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 2

0 
O

ct
ob

er
•

A
 jo

in
t m

ee
tin

g 
of

 a
ll 

th
re

e 
LI

N
K

s 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 
fo

r 
N

ov
em

be
r.

C
ou

nc
il

•
H

ea
lth

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 o
n 

26
 O

ct
ob

er

P
C

T
 B

oa
rd

•
O

ut
lin

e 
of

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
t S

ep
te

m
be

r 
m

ee
tin

g
•

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 a

t 2
1 

O
ct

ob
er

 
m

ee
tin

g

15

Page 39



16

O
u

r 
N

ex
t 

S
te

p
s

!
F

irm
 u

p 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 S
pe

nd
in

g 
R

ev
ie

w
 (

20
 O

ct
)

!
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 r
ef

in
e 

ou
r 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 w

ith
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

pa
ce

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 m
or

e 
sa

vi
ng

s

!
D

ev
el

op
 a

 d
ec

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
of

 £
10

m
 in

 1
1/

12

!
D

ev
el

op
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 a
nd

 a
n 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ac

ro
ss

 In
ne

r 
N

or
th

 E
as

t L
on

do
n 

to
 1

4/
15

 w
ith

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

 fo
r 

11
/1

2

!
U

pd
at

e 
at

 C
E

C
 a

nd
 B

oa
rd

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r

Page 40



17

T
h

e 
ei

g
h

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

 m
o

d
el

le
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 1
4/

15

•
U

rg
en

t 
C

ar
e 

C
en

tr
e 

at
 R

L
H

•
C

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 A
&

E
•

A
im

 f
o

r 
ca

p
it

at
ed

 p
at

h
w

ay

•
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y 
le

ve
rs

•
E

n
h

an
ce

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

fo
cu

si
n

g
 o

n
 4

 s
p

ec
ia

lit
ie

s 
w

it
h

 
in

cr
ea

se
d

 v
o

lu
m

e
•

A
im

 f
o

r 
IC

O
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 / 

ca
p

it
at

ed
 p

at
h

w
ay

s

•
R

ed
u

ce
d

 L
O

S
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

em
en

ti
a 

lia
is

o
n

•
R

ed
u

ce
d

 h
ig

h
 c

o
st

 o
u

t 
o

f 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
•

E
L

F
T

 M
H

 r
ev

ie
w

 (
E

L
C

A
)

•
S

ec
to

ri
sa

ti
o

n
 –

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
es

 –
(E

L
C

A
)

•
F

u
rt

h
er

 w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

12
/1

3 
o

n
w

ar
d

s

•
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 L
T

C
 m

an
ag

em
en

t
•

5 
n

ew
 p

ac
ka

g
es

 –
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
d

u
lt

s,
 0

-5
 , 

C
O

P
D

, C
V

D
, 

H
yp

er
te

n
si

o
n

•
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

an
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 F
ir

st
 t

o
 

F
o

llo
w

u
p

, C
o

n
su

lt
an

t 
to

 C
o

n
su

lt
an

t,
 E

xc
es

s 
B

ed
 D

ay
s 

an
d

 P
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
o

f 
L

o
w

 C
lin

ic
al

 V
al

u
e 

(E
L

C
A

)
•

In
cr

ea
se

d
 G

P
 / 

P
B

C
E

  r
o

le
 a

n
d

 p
o

w
er

•
C

an
ce

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y

•
R

ed
u

ce
d

 T
ee

n
ag

e 
P

re
g

n
an

cy
 b

u
d

g
et

•
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

su
cc

es
s 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

–
sm

o
ki

n
g

, o
b

es
it

y,
 

b
re

as
t 

sc
re

en
in

g

11
/1
2

12
/1
3

13
/1
4

14
/1
5

To
ta
l

Co
st

!7
2.
1"

!4
4.
1"

!1
14

.1
"

!1
14

.1
"

!3
44

.4
"

Sa
vi
ng
s

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

N
et

!7
2.
1"

!4
4.
1"

!1
14

.1
"

!1
14

.1
"

!3
44

.4
"

Co
st

27
17

.6
"

27
88

.2
"

29
31

.3
"

29
96

.4
"

11
43

3.
5"

Sa
vi
ng
s

45
52

.9
"

46
47

.1
"

48
89

.7
"

49
80

.1
"

19
06

9.
8"

N
et

!1
83

5.
3"

!1
85

8.
9"

!1
95

8.
4"

!1
98

3.
7"

!7
63

6.
3"

Co
st

24
0.
0"

24
0.
0"

24
0.
0"

24
0.
0"

96
0.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

10
00

.0
"

10
00

.0
"

10
00

.0
"

10
00

.0
"

40
00

.0
"

N
et

!7
60

.0
"

!7
60

.0
"

!7
60

.0
"

!7
60

.0
"

!3
04

0.
0"

Co
st

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

10
00

.0
"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

10
00

.0
"

N
et

!1
00

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

!1
00

0.
0"

Co
st

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

60
00

.0
?

?
?

?
N
et

60
00

.0
"

?
?

?
?

Co
st

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

0.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

19
16

.0
"

20
83

.0
"

20
79

.0
"

17
64

.0
"

78
42

.0
"

N
et

!1
91

6.
0"

!2
08

3.
0"

!2
07

9.
0"

!1
76

4.
0"

!7
84

2.
0"

Sa
vi
ng
s

!1
00

0.
0

!1
50

0.
0

!2
00

0.
0

!2
33

3.
0

!6
83

3.
0

E
na

bl
er

s
•

IH
W

B
 c

o
st

s
•

IT
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 P

C
IP

, C
C

2H

Co
st

65
2.
0"

43
6.
0"

40
0.
0"

40
0.
0"

18
88

.0
"

Sa
vi
ng
s

5.
0"

6.
8"

0.
0"

0.
0"

11
.8
"

N
et

64
7.
0"

42
9.
2"

40
0.
0"

40
0.
0"

18
76

.2
"

A
ll 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
re

 la
te

st
 e

st
im

at
es

 a
nd

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e

Co
st

24
73

.2
"

22
59

.6
"

23
42

.7
"

24
32

.5
"

95
08

.0
"

Sa
vi
ng
s

21
58

.9
"

33
49

.4
"

51
09

.9
"

77
15

.8
"

18
33

4.
0"

N
et

31
4.
3"

!1
08

9.
8"

!2
76

7.
2"

!5
28

3.
3"

!8
82

6.
0"

S
ta

yi
ng

 
H

ea
lth

y

H
os

pi
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e

C
ar

e 
C

lo
se

r 
to

 H
om

e

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
ea

lth
 

S
er

vi
ce

s

U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

an
d 

 G
P

 
A

cc
es

s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

A
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Area
Clinical 

Pathway
Sub-pathway / 

Topic
Primary / 

Secondary etc
ELCA in-year assessment 

2010/11
Performance gaps

Existing National 
/ Pan-London 

initiatives

Cross-reference 
with current 

sector 
initiatives

Deliverability of 
existing initiatives in 

2011/12 (RAG)

Quantification of Gap for 2010/11

Acute care Patient satisfaction Secondary All 3 acute trusts had multiple 
patient satisfaction scores in the 
bottom 20% of the country (HUH 
29 of 60 qns; NUHT 20; BLT 5).  In 
addition, HUH and NUHT received 
responses in relation to Nursing 
Care that were assessed as 
"worse" than other trusts by CQC, 
overall.

Low levels of patient satisfaction 
relative to other trusts across the 
sector, but especially HUH and 
NUHT.

The Clinical Quality Review 
group review patient 
satisfaction surveys  and 
follow up concerns with 
the Trust.  

All 3 acute trusts had multiple patient satisfaction scores 
in the bottom 20% of the country (HUH 29 of 60 qns; 
NUHT 20; BLT 5).  In addition, HUH and NUHT received 
responses in relation to Nursing Care that were assessed 
as "worse" than other trusts by CQC, overall.  Trend 
improving slightly.

Multiple / Not 
Applicable

GP Patient 
Experience

Primary NPCT and TH performed worse 
than national and London 
averages on GP patient survey 
09/10, including waiting times, 
quality of care, cleanliness, 
relationships.  C&H generally 
better than London average, 
worse than National.

Poor patient experience for GP visits, 
particularly in TH and NPCT.  GP 48 
hour access is lower than national 
average (S11).

Primary Care 
Performance

Amber. Partial - initiative 
targets Patient 
Access - aligning 
to pick up other 
areas

R C&H monitors the GPPS 
results on a quarterly basis. 
Comparitive information is 
sent to all practices and 
poor performing practices 
receive a diagnostic visit. 
Local work aims for synergy 
with sector initiatives. 

A Current 48 hour GP access availability is average 76% for 
ELCA (74% NPCT, 76% C&H, 78% TH) versus 81% 
nationally.  Contributing to high admission rates (refer 
Urgent and Emergency Care gap statement.)

NPCT and TH performed worse than national and London 
averages on GP patient survey 09/10, including waiting 
times, quality of care, cleanliness, relationships.  C&H 

Productivity Planned care Acute Productivity 
Measures (Planned 
Care)

Secondary Several measures indicate 
productivity improvements across 
the sector are possible, including:  
consultant-to-consultant referrals 
(A8), Excess Bed Days (A7), First to 
followup rates (A4, P2), day case 
rates (A6), DNA rates (P1).

Several measures indicate 
productivity improvements across 
the sector are possible, including:  
consultant-to-consultant referrals 
(A8), readmissions (A5), shortstay 
admissions (A1), LOS (A7), First to 
followup rates (A4), day case rates 
(A6).

Drive acute 
productivity to 
upper quartile

Red. Sector initiative 
focussing on C2C & 
F2FU.

Conducted 
through SACU 
with PCC support

CSP and Operating Plan 
initiatives for 10-11.  
Performance Monitored 
through Sector acute 
performance group and 
reported back to 
fortnightly CHPCT Directors 
meeting and monthly 
PBCE/CCE

A  First  OP shift to community settings and  Primary 
Care. Fup shift to community setting and primary care 
+20% decommissioned.  In 2012/13 we will shift an 
additional 30,086 OPAs In 2013/14 we will shift an 
additional 29,183 OPAs In 2014/15 we will shift an 
additional 15,043 OPAs;  Development of Integrated 
Health and Social Care Teams, Virtual wards, Redesign 
of the following existing teams: community matrons  
district nurses continuing care and community nurses 
specialist nurses home rehabilitation service 
intermediate care, respite and CC beds OTs, SLT, 
physiotherapies and psychology day hospital social 
care
Activity reductions are expected in GP care, acute care 
and A&E
Diagnostic wastage should be reduced
The number of people dying in hospital should be 
reduced
More self care will take place in the home; health and 
social care economic
gain varying between 1.35 million pounds and 2.55 
million pounds PA

G The following figures are estimates of potential annual 
savings based on average tarrif costs.
FFU:  Achieving London average = £2.0M
Daycases:  Moving elective daycase rate from 61% to 65% 
= £1.26M (London av 61% also)  [Savings only achieved if 
total beds reduced]
Excess Bed Days: Reducing excess bed days by 2% 
towards London average = £494K
C2C Referrals:  Costed data not yet available.  Current 
performance in line with London average.
DNA Rates:  Data not yet available

Identified potential savings = £3.8M

Cancer Screening / 
Awareness and 
Early Diagnosis

Cross-cutting 2008/9 data shows proportion of 
eligible population participating in 
breast cancer screening 
programme: TH (63.5%), CH 
(58.38) and NPCT (55.58) all below 
National (77) and London (65) 
averages.  (PCT breakdown not yet 

Low proportion of the population 
participating in breast cancer 
screening programmes, though 
improving.  Bowel cancer screening 
also improving from low base, 
cervical static. All a contributor to 
low overall one year survival rates.

National Cancer 
Screening 
Programmes

Breast screening 
improvement 
programme

Red.  Initiative covers 
breast scr only, with 3yr 
trajectory.

Developing cancer 
Strategy for Nov 
10

G Operating plan initiaitve 3: 
Feeling well, staying 
healthy 

Community development approaches to increase 
screening uptake, developing plans for providing 
digital mammography services.  

G Improving one-year survival to England average would 
result in up to 90 people in INEL living 5 years or more 
beyond their diagnosis.
Improving to best in England would result in up to 300 
people in INEL living 5 years or more beyond their 
diagnosis.

One year survival 
rates

Cross-cutting Cancer 1 yr survival 2006 (%): CH 
63.8, TH 58.7, N 56.3. Position in 
London is 19th, 29th and 31st 
respectively. TH and N are in 
bottom 10% nationally

One year survival is lower than 
London average for all three 
localities. Newham and Tower 
Hamlets have particularly poor 
outcomes and are in the bottom 
10% nationally. 

Developing cancer 
Strategy for Nov 
10

Operating plan initiaitve 3: 
Feeling well, staying 
healthy 

Engaging with public, patients, community partners to 
deliver preventative and health improvement services 
across a wide range of environments Developing 
prostate cancer clinic in community setting  or in 
conjunction with West Ham Football Club Develop 
plans for providing digital mammography services in 
Newham and age extension of breast cancer services. 
Possibilities for this service are the use of symptomatic 
breast services at NUHT, or the Polysystem approach

See above.

Existing Newham PCT Initiatives 

CancerHealth 
Inequalities

Patient 
experience

Existing Tower 
Hamlets PCT 

Initatives 

Existing City & Hackney PCT 
Initiatives 

P
age 43



Area
Clinical 

Pathway
Sub-pathway / 

Topic
Primary / 

Secondary etc
ELCA in-year assessment 

2010/11
Performance gaps

Existing National 
/ Pan-London 

initiatives

Cross-reference 
with current 

sector 
initiatives

Deliverability of 
existing initiatives in 

2011/12 (RAG)

Quantification of Gap for 2010/11
Existing Newham PCT Initiatives 

Patient 

Existing Tower 
Hamlets PCT 

Initatives 

Existing City & Hackney PCT 
Initiatives 

Variable 
management of 
vascular conditions

Cross-cutting Directly Age Standardised 
mortality rates for circulatory 
diseases 2006-8: (<75) CH 112.49, 
TH 120.52, N 118.84, L 79.38, Eng 
74.8.  Variable management of risk 
factors such as cholesterol (L3, L7, 
L13), blood pressure (L10, L12), 
HbA1C (L8).  Also poor diet across 
sector a contributor (S3).

Management of vascular risk factors 
in primary care shows a mixed 
picture when benchmarked against 
London with examples of 
performance on indicators well 
above average, average and below 
average.  Higher mortality in vascular 
conditions compared to London and 
England. Trends indicate that 
mortality rates falling at similar rate 
to elsewhere which means that the 
gap persists.  

Shift setting of 
care for OP 
activity

Red.  Scope does not 
address gap exactly - 
progress slow.

PCIP - Care 
Package

G - Developing the existing vascular risk assessment 
service to deliver health checks to target populations 
Engaging with public, patients and community partners 
to deliver preventative and health improvement 
services across a wide range of environments 
Systematically assessing the target population to 
manage and reduce risk of cardiovascular disease 
Using point of care testing services during the 
assessment and supporting the outcome with a range 
of interventions suited to reduce and manage 
individual risk.
- 15,000 checks each year.  Creation of a Integrated 
multidisciplinary diabetes team that is consultant led 
and GP championed , Increase to 70% for patients with 
diabetes in whom the last HbA1C is 7.5 or less in the 
previous 15 months 50% reduction in emergency 
admissions with primary care diagnosis of diabetes by 
2012 20% reduction in amputation rates by 2012 50% 
reduction in non-elective admissions with primary 
diagnosis of diabetes by 2012 50 % reduction in CVD 
events by 2012 
Reduction in mortality rate to 70 per 100,000 by 2015

G Application of best practice interventions across 100% of 
eligible population with CVD could reduce All Age All 
Cause Mortality (AAACM) rate per 100,000 by 75.  (DH 
Modelling, 2006-8 data)

Variability in 
management of 
COPD

Cross-cutting COPD 12 % with COPD diagnosed 
and spirometry confirmed: CH 
88.1, TH 92, N 81.6, L 89.2, Eng 
90.5.  COPD mortality rate also 
high (L4).  More evidence 
required.

Performance on spirometry 
confirmed diagnosis in top quadrant 
for TH, below average for CH and 
bottom quadrant for N.  COPD 
mortality rates high across the 
sector.

QIPP COPD 
Initiative

PCIP - Care 
Package

G Application of best practice interventions across 100% of 
eligible population with COPD could reduce All Age All 
Cause Mortality (AAACM) rate per 100,000 by 21.69.  (DH 
Modelling, 2006-8 data)

Productivity Maternity and 
newborn care

Maternity pathway Cross-cutting Variable or poor outcomes across 
the sector relating to maternity 
pathway, including:  c-section 
rates (N6, N3), 12+6 (N2), 
breastfeeding at 6 weeks (N1), 
patient experience (N9).

Variable or poor outcomes across 
the sector relating to maternity 
pathway.

H4NEL Antenatal care 
pathway

Red - progress slow, 
exact scope tbc.

Contributions 
around early 
access (amber), 
breastfeeding 
(green)

A Delivering maternity care in the community reduction 
of 50% of N1 attendances by 2013

G - Homerton (27.2), NUHT (29.3) and BLT (24.7) all 
significantly above National (23.5) average C-Section 
rates.  Achieving England average c-section rate = £150K 
saving for C&H alone.
- Newham PCT breastfeeding rates half the national 
average (15.9%). 
- Low proportion of pregnant woment seeing midwife 
within 12 weeks at Homerton (43.5 % vs London 53.7 , 
England 61.9). 

Clinical 
Quality

Mental health Quality of mental 
health care

Mental Health Recent SUI reviews highlighted 
shortfalls in performance at ELFT.

Hospital admissions for mental 
health/100,000: CH - 678.45, TH - 
516.22, N - 438.33, L 332.49, E 
305.82.

Best practice mental health 
approaches not used consistently at 
ELFT.

High rates of acute hospital 
admissions where mental health is a 
key contributor.

MH 
commissioning 
unit / Whole 
system review

Red- whole system 
review not yet 
commenced.

This area is covered under 
CQUIN and monitored as 
part of contract review 
process.

Whole system review in progress.

Productivity Multiple / Not 
Applicable

Community services Cross-cutting Poor alignment of community 
services with primary/secondary 
care clinicians, contributing to 
poor outcomes, including high 
readmission rates.  [FURTHER 
EVIDENCE REQUIRED]

Poor alignment of community 
services with primary/secondary 
care clinicians, contributing to poor 
outcomes, including high 
readmission rates.

Sector tariff for 
community 
services

Red- current scope 
unlikely to solve 
perceived gaps.

Productivity Unplanned 
Care

Urgent and 
Emergency Care

Cross-cutting Poor performance in urgent and 
emergency care across various 
measures:  UCC diversion rates 
(U1), GP Access (NA10), )A&E 
attendance and admissions (U3, 
U4), growth in ambulance activity 
(U5), shortstay admissions (A1), 
Readmission rate (A5)).

Poor sector wide performance and 
growth in urgent and emergency 
care.

Shift 40% of A&E 
activity to UCCs

Amber. Urgent Care 
Strategy and 
programme - 
aligned with 
access and 
showing v good 
results eg A&E 
VO8 attendances 
reduced through 
increased GP 
Access

G Key CSP initiatives are to 
Increase UCC diversion rate 
to 40%, the GP in CDU pilot 
and to align UCC model 
with sector approach

Developing a 24 hour primary care led centre 
delivering urgent care services on the existing A&E site 
at NUHT and operating a „see and treat  model The 
interim UCC is now treating 52% of patients attending 
A&E services. It is expected that increased hours, 
improved effectiveness and increased skills of 
practitioners will increase that to 60%

G 0 LOS:  INEL currently near London average.  10% 
reduction = £1.6M
Emergency Admissions:  85% INEL admissions are non-
elective.  Achieving London av (80%) = £2.3M
Readmissions:  2010/11 rate 11.5%.  Achieving 09/10 rate 
(10.55%) = £465K  [Excluding effect of operating F/W 
changes]
Minor Attendances:  Transfer of 10% of "Minor" A&E 
attendances into UCC = £300K
Ambulance:  Potential savings 2011/12 through diverting 
10% more to non-A&E settings, treating 5% more patients 
at scene, and referring 7% more without conveying  = 
£465K.

Identified potential savings = £5M

Clinical 
Quality

Long-term 
conditions

P
age 44



Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
26 October 
2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item No. 
5 
 
 

Report of:  
 
 
NHS Tower Hamlets  
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
 
Presenting Officer: 
 
Dr Somen Banerjee 
Co-Director Public Health 
NHS Tower Hamlets and LBTH 
 
 
Clare Skidmore 
Policy and Strategy Manager, Strategy and 
Policy   
Adults Health and Wellbeing 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
 

Title:  
 
 
Update on Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
 
 
Ward(s) affected:  
 
All  

 
 
1. Summary 
 
The briefing and presentation set out the borough profile, health headlines and needs 
assessment for Tower Hamlets in 2010.  
 
The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment is the process that identifies the current and 
future health and wellbeing needs of a local population. It informs the priorities and 
targets set by local area agreements between the NHS and the Council and its 
partners which lead to agreed commissioning priorities that will improve outcomes 
and reduce health inequalities. 
 
It takes in to account the wider determinants of income, unemployment, housing and 
homelessness, education, crime, road safety and unemployment. As well as the 
following health issues: maternity and early years, children and young people, 
staying healthy, long term conditions and disability, cancer, mental health, end of life 
care, planned care, unplanned care and cross cutting issues 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
 The purpose of the presentation is to: 
a) Introduce HSP to JSNA and the joint approach of the Council and NHS 
b) Summarise 09/10 findings and recommendations. 
c) Summarise feedback from 09/10 and set out approach to 10/11 

 
 The Health Scrutiny Panel is asked to: 
a) Comment on the content and approach for 10/11  
b) Consider how the Health Scrutiny Panel can be involved in the process.  
 

 

Agenda Item 4.5

Page 45



  
 

Page 46



  

Tower Hamlets Borough Profile 2010 
 
Needs Summary 
 
Population 
The Tower Hamlets population in 2010 is estimated to be 242,000. It is a population characterised by 
diversity (50% of the population are non white and 34% Bangladeshi), mobility (19% move in or out of 
the borough per year), high growth (although this uneven across the borough) and a significantly 
higher proportion of young people than elsewhere (37% are aged 25-39 compared to 27% across 
London).  Growth is predicted through a local planning model that links population growth with 
residential development and this suggests that the population will reach 264,000 by 2016.  
 
Health headlines 
Headline health indicators indicate significant health inequalities between Tower Hamlets and the rest 
of the country. Male life expectancy is 75.3 years compare to 77.82 nationally and female life 
expectancy is 80.4 compare to 81.95 (2006-8). The Borough has the highest or second highest 
mortality in London for the three major killers: cardiovascular disease, cancer and chronic respiratory 
disease (COPD). Trends indicate year on year improvement but with limited reduction in the gap. 
 
Socioeconomic determinants of health 
The most important factor accounting for health inequalities between Tower Hamlets and elsewhere 
is socioeconomic deprivation. The borough is ranked the third most deprived ward nationally. 78.5% 
of Tower Hamlets residents live in the 20% most deprived areas in England compared to around 26% 
of London residents. This is reflected in statistics indicating the highest levels of child poverty in the 
country, amongst the high unemployment rates in London, a high proportion of people with no 
qualifications, lower educational attainment compared to the rest of the country (but improving), 
higher levels of overcrowding and significant levels of housing classified as ‘non decent’ (in 2008 52% 
council housing fell below the decent homes standard compared to 32% in London).  
 
Early years 
The birth rate in Tower Hamlets is similar to the London average. 45% of births are to Bangladesh 
mothers. Although a higher proportion of newborns have lower birth weight (<2500g), infant mortality 
rates are not significantly different to London. Breast feeding initiation rates are higher than London. 
Tooth decay rates in five year olds have been improving but remain higher than London. Childhood 
obesity in 4-5 year olds is the 5th highest in London. 
 
Children and Young People 
60% of under 19s are Bangladeshi. Two thirds of under 16s live in low income households (the 
highest levels of child poverty in the country). 1 in 5 children under 15 have tried a cigarette (similar to 
national averages) and 4 out 10 retailers are selling cigarettes to under 18s.. Tower Hamlets has the 
2nd  highest prevalence of obesity in year 6 in the country. 3 in 10 children have ever had an alcoholic 
drink compared to 7 in 10 nationally (reflecting the large Muslim community in the borough).  
Teenage pregnancy rates are lower than England and London averages following a recent downward 
trend although recent data indicates that rates are expected to increase for 2009. Childhood 
immunisation uptake is higher than London and MMR uptake at 24 months and 5 years has 
increased significantly over the past year (most recent data indicates over 92% uptake of second 
MMR). The number of children on the Child Protection Register has increased sharply over recent 
years. This primarily reflects increases in ascertainment Prevalence of mental health disorders in 
children is similar to national averages (around 1 in 10) 
 
Staying Healthy and Health Protection 
27% of adults in Tower Hamlets smoke compared to 21% nationally with particularly high smoking 
prevalence in Bangladeshi males. 9 out of 10 adults eat less than five a day compared to 7 out of 10 
nationally. A lower proportion of adults participate in sport and active recreation (15.5% compared to 
21.2% nationally). 1 in 2 adults have not had an alcoholic drink in the past year but in the White 
population, 4 in 10 are classified as harmful drinkers compared to 2 in 10 nationally. Incidence of 
sexually transmitted infections (STIs) has increased significantly in the past few years. Tower 
Hamlets has the 8th highest rates of STIs per 100 000 population in the country (50% higher than the 
London rate). Prevalence rates of HIV have increased by 34% since 2005.  23% of HIV infections 

Page 47



  

were diagnosed late in 2009 compared to 31% in London. Prevalence rates for tuberculosis have 
been rising slowly over the past few years and reached 65.3 per 100 000 population in 2009, 
significantly higher than the London average of 45.1. Seasonal flu immunisation uptake is adequate 
in over 65s (76%) but lower in under 65s with long term conditions (55%) although this is above the 
national average (52%).   
 
 
Long Term Conditions 
Tower Hamlets has the highest or second highest mortality rates in London for the major long term 
conditions: coronary heart disease (CHD), stroke and chronic respiratory disease. Diabetes 
prevalence is higher than London and this is particularly linked with the high proportions of 
Bangladeshis in the population.  Analysis of observed prevalence against expected for long term 
conditions indicates levels of underdiagnosis for most conditions but particularly hypertension, CHD, 
chronic kidney disease and COPD. In primary care, quality and outcome indicators are generally 
relatively good compared to London. Management of blood pressure and cholesterol in CHD and 
diabetic patients is generally well above the London average. Conversely, HbA1C has been in the 
bottom quadrant in London and for this reason, diabetes was the first priority for the care packages. 
Despite generally good outcomes overall there remain significant variations between practices and 
this has been a major driver to standardise care through the primary care investment programme. 
Secondary care admission rates (age standardised) for CHD, stroke, heart failure and COPD are the 
highest in London.  
 
 
Cancer 
Tower Hamlets has the highest cancer mortality in London.  This is driven to a significant extent by 
high incidence and mortality from lung cancer and reflects the high prevalence of smoking in the 
Borough. However, one year survival from cancer is in the bottom 10% nationally and this is 
particularly poor for breast, colorectal and prostate cancer. Cancer screening uptake is lower than 
national averages (breast, cervical and bowel). Evidence indicates that late diagnosis is a significant 
contributor to poorer survival. Increasing screening uptake, early awareness of symptoms and early 
diagnosis of cancer are major priorities to improve survival.   
 
Mental Health 
Suicide is a high level indicator of mental health need in a population and Tower Hamlets has the 
fourth highest rate in London. Schizophrenia prevalence is just under three times the national 
average reflecting factors such as homelessness and substance misuse. Overall prevalence of 
dementia is lower than London due to the younger population. However, 7% of over 65s are 
estimated to suffer from dementia and there is evidence of significantly levels of underreporting or 
underdiagnosis in primary care.  
 
End of Life Care 
Around 1140 Tower Hamlets residents will die per year. It is estimated that around 870 will need 
some form of palliative care. Based on national findings, most people when asked, state a preference 
for dying at home. However, Tower Hamlets has a higher hospital death rate compared to national 
(68% compared to 58%) and a significantly lower home death rate (17% compared to 19%). The 
percentage of deaths in hospitals has been slowly falling with a corresponding increase in hospice 
deaths. The percentage dying at home has remained relatively static. 
 
Planned and Unscheduled Care 
Tower Hamlets has amongst the lowest standardised first attendance rates in London. However, a 
lower percentage of outpatients are discharged at first appointment and the percentage of those not 
attending is amongst the highest in London. Elective admission rates are the lowest in London. 
Conversely, Tower Hamlets has amongst the highest emergency admission rates in London 
(particularly heart attacks, stroke, falls, accidents and fracture neck of femur). Local analysis has 
indicated a significant relationship between the ratio of elective to non elective admissions and 
deprivation. This ratio is substantially lower in higher deprivation deciles.  
 
 
 

Page 48



  

Internal inequalities within Tower Hamlets.  
 
Although there are significant health inequalities between Tower Hamlets and the rest of the country, 
there are also substantial inequalities within the borough. Life expectancy at ward level varies by 
around 8 years in males and 6 years for females and variation is strongly correlated with deprivation 
(more strongly for males than females). These differences are also reflected in deprivation related 
patterns of prevalence of and mortality from cardiovascular disease, chronic respiratory disease and, 
to a lesser extent, cancer across the borough. Disease prevalence and mortality also varies 
significantly by ethnicity. Observed diabetes prevalence is higher in Bangladeshis compared to the 
white population (7% compared to 5%). Conversely, crude prevalence of hypertension and COPD is 
higher in the white population (reflecting the older age profile of the white population). Primary care 
quality and outcome indicators also vary by ethnicity. Age adjusted mortality rates are significantly 
higher in the White population compared to the Bangladeshi population for deaths from all causes, 
cardiovascular disease (under 75) and cancer (under 75). Health inequalities between men and 
women are frequently overlooked. However, it is striking that the life expectancy gap between men 
and women is 5 years compared to 4 years nationally. This is consistent with a higher gap in areas of 
high deprivation.  
 
Recent analysis to understand local health inequalities in greater depth has focussed on analysis of 
health and wellbeing data by deprivation deciles. This has highlighted that the secondary care costs 
of those living in the most deprived deciles in Tower Hamlets are almost twice those living in the least 
deprived (£227 per head compared to £117 per head). Furthermore, the ratio between elective and 
non elective admissions is around three times higher in the least deprived decile compared to the 
most deprived. The analysis has identified the importance of understanding health inequalities at 
below ward level (e.g. lower super output area) to inform locality and LAP level clinical commissioning 
as well as service integration a very local level (e.g. estate, neighbourhood).  
 
 
Community Perspectives 
Findings from the Place Survey and Annual Residents Survey highlight Tower Hamlets as a place 
where residents feel less satisfied with their local area, have less of a sense of community cohesion 
and perceive higher levels of crime. Social marketing qualitative research has provided insights into 
resident perceptions of services and has identified strong cultural differences between ethnic groups 
in relation to knowledge, attitudes and belief that lead to differences in how services are used. The 
Tower Hamlets Involvement Network have identified the following priorities issues from a 
patient/public perspective: quality of patient consultation with GPs, links between GPs and acute 
care, staff attitude at Royal London Hospital, integration of community care services, integrating 
mental health care and use of personal budgets by social care users. The Improving Health and 
Wellbeing consultation in 2009 and other local surveys suggest that residents have seen 
improvement in services over the past three years.   Integration of services through health centres is 
welcomed, although there is a concern about ensuring that local access is not lost.  
 
 
 
 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



��
��

���
��

	�

�

��
�





��

��
��


�
��


�
�

�
��

	�



��

�


�
�	

���
��

��
��

��

�

��
	�

�

��

��

	

���
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�
��

��

�

 ��
!"

!
#

���
��


�
�$

	�

�

%


 

�&
�'

#
��


�
��

���
��

���
��


	
���

&�
	�


�
�(

��
�

��

 

���



��
��

��
�	

�
�


�
)

	�
	�


�

Page 51



�
*


�*
�


�

•
��



��

+
�

�	
���

��
��,

•
-	

��
��


	
�

•
��

��
��


	
�

�

Page 52



.
�	

���
��

��
��

���
��

	�

�

��
�





��

��
��


�
��


�
�,

��
��
��
��
		
�
�
�

��

��

��
��
	�

�
��
��
��
��

��
�

�

��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

	
��
���
���
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

��
	�
��

�


�
��
�

	�
	�

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��

	
��
�

�

��
�

��
��

�
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
�	
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
	�


�
�

��
���
���
��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
��
�

���

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��

��
	�

#
�

�/
��

�	
��


�
��

���



��
�!

!0

1

Page 53



�
*


�*
�


�
��

2��
�


�

3

Page 54



��
��

�	
��

•
�
��

���
��
�	

–


��
�

��
��

�
��
��

•
�
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
	�

–
��
��

��
�


��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

�

��
��


�
��
��
��
��

�

�

–
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

�

�

–
�
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��

�

�

•
�
��

���
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�


��
�


�	
–

�
��
��

�

���
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

�

��

–
�
��
��

�

���
��
��

��

��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

 �
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
!
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

��
��
���

��
�!

��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

��"

���

�

��
�

��
��
��

–
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
�


��"
��
�

��
��
��
��
��

�
��

–
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
�


��"
��

��
��

�

��
��
��
��
�

•
�
��

���
��
�!

��
��

�

��
��
��
���

���
��
��

��
��
���

��
���
��
�	

–
��
��

�

��
�


��
��
��
�
�


�
–

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

 �
��


�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

#�
�
�
�


��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

 �
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

�

•
�
��

���
��
��


�
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�!

��
��
��
�
�$

�

��
��
��
��
��
�


��
	

–
��
��

�

��
�


��
��
��
�
�


�
–

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

 �
��


�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

#�
�
�
�


��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�


�
–

 �
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

�

•
�
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
��

%�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
	

–
&'

�

(�
��
��
��

�

�

–
)�

��
��
��

��
��
��
�
�


��*
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
��
��
!
�+
��
��

��
��

�
��
$�

��

�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
,

•
�
��

���
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
���

���
�
��
��

��
�


���
��

��
��
��

�

��
�-
�

��
��
�	

–
#�

�
�
��
��
�


��
. 
��
��
��

��
�/
��

�.
#�
�

��
��
���

��
�0�

�

���

��
��
�
�


�

•
�
��

���
��
��
��

�!
��

�

��
���

�$

�

!
	�

–
��


�
�

��
�

��
���
��


�
��
!
��
$�
��
��
��

�

�

–
�
��

��
��
��
��

�

�

Page 55



#
	�

	�
4&

��

�

��



�
��

	�
	�


�
5

#

�

��
�	

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�

��
��
�
�

��
��

�

��

��
�

��
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
�
��



�
��
	�
��

 
��
�
�
��!

�

�
	

�

��
�

��
�

�

�*

��

�

��
��
�
�

�

��
�

��
�

�
��
	�
��

"�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�

�

!�
��
��
�!
��
��
��
	

�
��
�
�
��
#�
��
	

��
�	

�
��
�
�
��
��

-�
2


��
��



!�
�$
��
�

%
��



&�
�	
��
��
��
�

��
�
�

��
��
��
�

!�
�	

�
��
��
 
�	
�	
�

!�
'�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

	

���
��

�	
��

�
%
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
�

!�
���
��
��
�

�

��
��
�
�

 
��

�
��

��

6�
��

�*

�

��

	

���
��

�	
��

��
	�

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
���


7
�	

���
�


�

.
��

��
�&

�	
��

�&
��

�
��

��
��

��
�8

8

�

Page 56



-	
��

�9

	

�

Page 57



��



��
!:

;"
!�

+
<�

��
��

��
�	

��	
��

�	
��



�


	
���

��

	

��
��


�
•

�
��

��
��

��
�	

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

*


��
	�

��
��

��
��

��
��

•
1��

�
��

���

�

��*

�

�-
��

	�

	

�
•

-�
2


�

=�


�
�	

��
��

��
��

�*
��

��
��

���
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
	�

�

	

���
�6�


7
�	

���
�


�
•

>	
��	

���
��

��
���

2

�


=�

�

�	
��

��
	�

��
��

�$
��

��
��

���
�(


�
���

�
�


��
�*

	�
��

��
•

)
��

�	
���

��
�	

�

��

��
��


�
���

��
��

�

��

��
��

	�
��

�
•

?�
�


	�
��

��
�


�
���

2

�


=�

�

�	
��

��
��

��
	�


�
•

�

��

��
	�

��
�	

�

��

��
��

���
��

��
���


�
��*


�
��


�
��


���
��


�
��

��

�

��
�

�

	�

���

�

��*

�

�4�
�


���
��

��
�


��

�


�
�


��
��

	�
�

��
��

��
�5

&�
���

�

��

	�
��

9�
��

��
�


��
�


•
�

��
��

�	
�


��
�2

���
��

��
�


�	
��

��
��

��

�

�?
�

•
�

�

��

��
���

�3
'?

��
���

��
��

?��
��

��

�

���
��

-�
��

��
•

�


�

	�

�

��

�

	�
��

��
	�

��

�

���

�

•
��

	�
��

��
��

�*

�


�
���

��
��

��
��

���
�

�

�

	

���
�-

�2

��

��

�

•
�

��
��

��
�(

��
��

��

*

	�

�

�

�4


��
�$

	�
��

	�

�

��
��

	�

�

5
•

-�
�


�
��


*

��

��
2��

��
��

�	
��	

��
�*

���
•

�
��

��
�


*

��

��
2��

	�
�

2�
���

���
(�

��
���

��
��

�

��

��
��

	�
��

�
•

@��
��

��

�

���
�6

��	
�


���
��

��
��

��
•

6�
��


	
�


��
��

��
6>

�	
��

��
$�

��

*

	�

�

�


-�
��

��

�

�
�&

��
��

���
��

�	
��

�&
	�

�

�

•
�

��
�


��
��

���

�

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
�	

���
��

��
���

�


�

�
	%

��
�(

���

�

�A
�

&	
��

��
*	

��
��

	�
��

��

	

�

 �&

	�
�


� 
�B


�
��

�	
��

��
��

��

	

�

•

/

�


�
	�

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��
��

�*
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
	�

	�

�


�
���

2�
*	

��
��

	�
��

��

	

�

���

��
���

	�
��

�	
�


�	
���

��
��

�*
	�

�	
���

��
��


�
�




��

��
	�

���

�

•
��

��
��

�

��


	
���

��
*�

*	
��2

��
�

��
	�

�

���

��
(


��
��

��	
�


��
�	

��
��

��

)

�

�	
���


	
���

•
<�

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
�


��	
�


���
�-

��
��

��
	�

��
��

��
��

�

*	

�

��


�
�2

�
�


*

�


��

�

�	
���

���

�

�
•

C*
��


�
�


��
2��

��

�

��
	�

��
��

��
�2

��

�


�
��	

C�
��

�2
�-

�2

�&

	�



•
-�

�

�

��
��


�
�


	�
��

�	
�


��
��

	�
��

	�
��

�	
�

��
	�

�

��

	�
��

��
��

�

��

�

��

�	
�


•
�

��
�


��
�


�

�

�

��

��
	�

�
��

��
��

��	
�


��
��

�-
��

��
�

•
�

��
��

#



��
4�

��
��

��
�	

��

�

��
�	

�

�5

���
��

��
�	

��

��

�

#

�

	�
�


��
�



�
��

	�
�


��
�


�
��

��
��

��
��


�
•

&	
�


��
•

-

	�

��
��

��
��

	�
���

��

�

•
�

��

�

��

�

��

�

	�
��

�

�

�	
���


	
���

•
��

��
��

���
�


���
��

��
��

��

�

��



•
)


�
�	

���

	

���
���

�$
)

C�
��

���
�


�
•

��
��

��
	�

��
��

	�
���

��
��

��
��

��
�


�

Page 58



��



��
!:

;"
!�

D

��

B

��

�
�


�
�	

���
��

Page 59



��
��

�9

	

�

Page 60



��
��


�
�	

��
��


	
���


�
�	

*

��

	�
���


�
)

	�
�

��
�B


*
�


�
��

��
�


	
���

�6�

7

�	
���

�

��

4<
	�

���
��

�

��

 ��

	

���
��

-�
*


��
+

��

�

)
	�

�
��

�B

*

�

�

5�	
��

���
��

���
2�

��
��

��
��

	�
��

�	
��

EE

(
��
�)
��

�
�&
��
��
*

#�
��
���
�

��
��

��

�
��
�
�
��
�

�

)
��
��
��
��
�+
��
�

	�

�	
�+
��
��
��
�

��
��
	�
��

��
�

��

�
�


�
��
��

�
�	
,

Page 61



<


�

�	
�(

�2�
��

��
��

���
 ��

��
�

��
��

��

�

��
	�

��
��

�*
��


�
�

•
/

�

	�

��
��

��

�

��
�F

���
	�

���
��

�	
*


���
��

	�

�

��
��

��
��

	�
�

	�
��

*

��

��
��


�
�

•
.

��
��

���
(


���
��


�
���


�
(


��
��

��

�

���
�	

��
	�

���
	�

�
��

�

	�

���
�	

��

�

��
��



•







��
�

��

�

��
�	

���
��

�

*


��	
�	

��
��

�
•







��
��

�	
��

�

��

��
�22


�

�

��	
��

�

��


�
�4


��
��

�
�

��
��

��

�

� 
��

��
���

�

��

5
•

��
G

E

Page 62



��



��
��

��
��

��

)
��

��
	�

�
��
��
��
���
��

�
��
,

)
��

�	
��
��

�
�
��
��
�

��
��
,

)
��

��
�
��
���
��
��
��

�
��
�,

�
��
��
��
��
��

�
�
�
��
�	
��
�


�
�,

)
��

�

��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�$
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

,

�
��

���
��

�	

�
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
�

�
��

���
��

�	

�
�
��

�

�
��
��
��
��
�

%
�	
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�

�

��
��
�*

&�
��
��
-��
��
��

��
�#
�&
���
��

.

!�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�

��
�
��
��

	

��
��
��

��

�
�
��
	�
��
	

&�
�

��

��
��
��
���
��
�	
�-�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
$�

��
�.

&�
��
�

��
�-�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��"
�
!�
�	
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
�	
�	

�
�
	�
��
��

�
�
�
�	

	
.

!�
�
�
�
��
�

'%
��
��
��
��
�

')
�

��
�

�

��
�
��
��

	

'�
��
�
�
��
#�
��
	

��
�	

'"
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��

��
�	

'�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�	

'#
��
��
�
�
/#
�&
�

��
��
	�
��

'�
���
��

��
��
��
���
��
��
�

'"
��
�
�	
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
	



��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
0�
�

��
/1

.�
#&

��
�
2
�"

&�
��

��
�


��
��
��
��
�1


��
�%

���
�'
��

��
�+
��
'
��
��
��
��

��
�+
�/
1
��
��
��
��

�
��
�
�


��
��
�

�

��
3�
/1

��
��
��

��
��
��
���

��
�

"!
;"

3;
�!

"!
"1

Page 63



W
id

er
 D

et
er

m
in

an
ts

In
co

m
e,

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s,
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 c
rim

e,
 r

oa
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

M
at

er
ni

ty
 a

nd
 e

ar
ly

 y
ea

rs
A

nt
en

at
al

 c
ar

e,
 in

fa
nt

 a
nd

 e
ar

ly
 y

ea
rs

 n
ut

rit
io

n

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
O

ra
l h

ea
lth

, c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s,
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n 

 (
se

e 
al

so
 S

ta
yi

ng
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 L
on

g 
T

er
m

 
co

nd
iti

on
s)

S
ta

yi
ng

 H
ea

lth
y

T
ob

ac
co

, p
hy

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

, d
ie

t, 
al

co
ho

l, 
ob

es
ity

, s
ex

ua
l h

ea
lth

, t
ee

na
ge

 p
re

ga
na

nc
y,

 H
IV

/A
ID

s,
 T

B
, 

im
m

un
is

at
io

n

Lo
ng

 T
er

m
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 
an

d 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

V
as

cu
la

r 
di

se
as

e 
(C

H
D

, S
tr

ok
e)

, d
ia

be
te

s,
 c

hr
on

ic
 o

bs
tr

uc
tiv

e 
pu

lm
on

ar
y 

di
se

as
e,

 a
st

hm
a,

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 
ne

ur
o,

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
lit

ie
s,

 p
hy

si
ca

l d
is

ab
lit

ie
s

C
an

ce
r

A
ll 

ca
nc

er
s,

 lu
ng

, b
re

as
t, 

bo
w

el
, c

er
vi

ca
l, 

pr
os

ta
te

, s
to

m
ac

h,
 o

th
er

 (
le

ss
 d

et
ai

l)

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

C
hi

ld
 a

nd
 a

do
le

sc
en

t, 
ad

ul
t (

m
ild

, m
od

er
at

e,
 s

ev
er

e)
, d

em
en

tia

E
nd

 o
f L

ife
 C

ar
e

P
al

lia
tiv

e 
ca

re
, d

yi
ng

 a
t h

om
e

P
la

nn
ed

 C
ar

e
G

P
 a

cc
es

s,
 o

ut
pa

tie
nt

 c
ar

e,
 e

le
ct

iv
e 

ca
re

, c
ar

e 
cl

os
er

 to
 h

om
e

U
np

la
nn

ed
 C

ar
e

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ad
m

is
si

on
s

C
ro

ss
 c

ut
tin

g
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e,

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ad

ul
ts

, P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

B
ud

ge
tin

g
A

ls
o:

 L
oc

al
ity

-b
as

ed
 n

ee
ds

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

, P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, C
ar

er
s,

 F
al

ls

��
��

��
�

�

	�

�2�
��<

	�
���

�


�

��
+

<�
��

#
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��


�
+

�

	�

�	
��

��
��

��
�)

	�
�

��
�<

�	
�


�
��

(

Page 64



H
�


��
��

��
�2�

���
��

��
��

��
�

•
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

�,

•
6�

*�
�*


�

�

���
��

��
��


�
�,

•
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

�,
��

��
�


��
��

��
�2�

��
2	

��
��




��

,

•
-�

�(
���

�!
:;

"!
–

��
��

A;
;�

�
�

E�
��


�
�	

�
�


��
E�

�*
E�

(;
��

��
;0

!"
'

0?
!;

01
�I

%�
�	

E	
��

=

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
26 October 
2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item No. 
4  
 

Report of:  
 
Originating Officer(s):  
Katie McDonald 
Scrutiny Policy Officer 
 

Title:  
 
Health Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 
2010/11 – 2011-2012  
 
 
Ward(s) affected: All           
 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report outlines the two year work programme for the Health Scrutiny Panel (HSP) for 

municipal years 2010/2011 and 2011-2012 
1.2 The report sets out the process used to develop the Health Scrutiny Work Programme and 

suggests a number of ways in which the Panel may wish to approach the workload. 
1.3 Appendix 1 sets out the schedule for items across the Panel Meetings for 2010/2011 
 
 
2.  Recommendations 
 
The Health Scrutiny Panel is asked to: 
 
2.1 Consider and comment on the draft work programme items and schedule attached at 

Appendix 1 and 2  
2.2 Agree options for managing the work programme 
2.3 Agree to review the work programme every quarter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
Background paper 
 
N/A  

Name and telephone number of and address 
where open to inspection 
 
Katie McDonald  
020 7364 0941 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4.6

Page 67



 

3.    Background 
 
3.1  The scrutiny of health is an important part of the Council’s commitment to place patients and the  
        public at the centre of health services in the borough. It is a fundamental way by which  
        democratically elected Councillors may voice the views of their constituents and require local 
        NHS bodies to listen and respond. In this way, the Council can assist to reduce health  
        inequalities and promote and support health improvement. 

 
        The Health Scrutiny Panel’s remit covers local health service provision and social care services 
        for adults and older people. A major role for the Panel is being a statutory consultee for all  
        substantial service change and development of local health services. The statutory duty and 
        powers given to local authorities for Health Scrutiny were established through the Health and  
        Social Care Act 2001.  Local authorities with Social Services responsibilities are required to have  
        an Overview and Scrutiny function that can respond to consultation by NHS bodies on significant  
        changes and developments in health services and take up the power of Overview and Scrutiny  
        on broader health and wellbeing issues. The Local Government and Public Involvement in   
        Health Act 2007 strengthened these powers further; it provides powers for Overview and 
        Scrutiny Committees to review and scrutinise the performance of public service providers to  
        meet the LAA targets, as well as empowering councillors to raise issues with Overview and  
        Scrutiny Committees through a ‘councillor call for action’.  
 
 
3.2   The primary aims of health scrutiny is to: 
  

• Identify whether health and health services reflect the views and aspirations of the 
local community  

• ensure all sections of the community have equal access to services  
• And have an equal chance of a successful outcome from services. 

 
3.3       In Tower Hamlets the Health Scrutiny Panel has been established as a sub-committee of the  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Its Terms of Reference are: 
 

• To review and scrutinise matters relating to the health and social care within the 
Council's area and make reports and recommendations in accordance with any 
regulations made 

• To respond to consultation exercises undertaken by an NHS body 
• To question appropriate officers of local NHS bodies in relation to the policies 

adopted and the provision of the services. 
 
3.4 During the induction process Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel met to set out 
          the strategic focus for the Panel for the two years 2010 – 2012. Instead of the previous four  
          year cycle the Panel will look to develop a two year cycle with a one year rolling programme. It  
          has been agreed that the Panel will work under the same overarching theme of the previous  
          cycle and the purpose for Health Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets should remain as tackling health  
          inequalities.    
 
3.5    The broad cross-cutting themes of the rolling work programme remain: 

 
• Health promotion and prevention through work with health partners and other third 

sector organisations 
• Developing better integration and partnership to improve joint service provision 
• Improving access to services as a key way of tackling health inequalities. 

 
  

 
 
 
 

Page 68



 

4       The work of the Health Scrutiny Panel in 2009/2010 
 

4.1     The Panel delivered an in-depth review looking at reducing childhood obesity.  A summary of 
the review is outlined below.   

 
Scrutiny Review: Reducing Childhood Obesity – Increasing the availability of healthy choices  

 
4.2 The review looked at reducing childhood obesity with a focus on promoting healthy eating by 

increasing the availability of and access to healthy food choices and reducing the availability of 
and access to foods that are high in fat, sugar and salt. 
 

4.3      The review had a number of key objectives.  
 

• To develop appropriate recommendations to ensure the issue around prevention of an 
over-concentration of fast food outlets can be operationalised.  

• To explore the possibility for offering healthy free school meals for all.  
• To support schools to maintain their commitment to providing food in a pleasant, sociable 

environment with promotion of healthy choices.  
• To examine the possibility of further investment into improving school dining facilities. 
• To continue to develop current initiatives particularly under the Healthy Borough 

programme such as business advice to encourage healthier food choices.  
 

4.4      The Health Scrutiny Panel were keen to ensure that their work added value to existing  
           work that had taken place in the borough on tackling obesity. The Panel considered  
           how the Council might directly address the problem with the proliferation of fast-food 
           outlets, particularly in the vicinity of schools, and the quality of the food they provide. The 
           Working Group examined the lettings policies of public sector landlords and Registered Social  

 Landlords with regards to fast food outlets to identify what action can be taken as well as the  
           possibility of Tower Hamlets offering healthy free school meals for all.  
 
4.5     Key Recommendations from the report were:  

 
• That the Children, Schools and Families Directorate find additional resources to provide 

free school meals for all pupils in Tower Hamlets (although it is realised in the current 
economic climate that this recommendation will not be implemented).  

• That Children, Schools and Families Directorate work with schools to develop a 
staggered lunch hour, so that pupils are not queuing for long periods over lunch.  

• That Development and Renewal Directorate develop an evidence base to underpin 
emerging policy on managing fast food outlets in Tower Hamlets as outlined in the 
‘Healthy Borough Programme’ report with a view of developing a means to restrict the 
over-concentration of fast food outlets in the borough, particularly those outside of town 
centres and within close proximity to schools.  

• That a report be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee detailing the 
success of the Healthy Borough Programme. This paper should form the basis for 
strengthening proposals for requesting further funding beyond March 2011.  

 
Impact: 
 

• The report is due to go to Cabinet in December 2010.  
 
4.6   Health for North East London Consultation – Joint  Overview Scrutiny Committee (JOSC)   
       
          Health for North East London (H4NEL) is the NHS programme review, run on behalf of  
          the north east London's Primary Care Trusts (PCT) and acute hospital trusts. The aim of  
          the health for north east London consultation was to significantly improve the health of  
          thousands of patients and ensure the NHS delivers the best possible care by taking  
          advantage of new medical developments and improve the way it delivers care to  
          patients by bringing some services closer to people’s homes and centralising others to  

Page 69



 

          provide better specialist care. 
 
          Two Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel and the Chair, Cllr Tim Archer were   
          nominated to represent the borough on the Inner North East London JOSC with 
          Members from the London Boroughs of Hackney, Newham and the City of London.  
          They considered and responded to the proposals set out in the PCT consultation 
          document, and examined whether the Health for North East London proposals would  
          deliver better healthcare for the people of North East London. The JOSC had the  
          opportunity to collect evidence from clinical specialists, the London Ambulance Service,  
          Transport for London and service users to reach its conclusions. The consultation has 
          now finished but the work is still on-going and it is likely that members of the HSP will be  
          asked to comment on the findings and final recommendations produced by H4NEL later in  
          the year.    
 
4.7       Evaluation of the Health Scrutiny Panel 4 year programme March 2010  
 

          As the Health Scrutiny Panel’s four-year work programme approached its end. It was  
          agreed in October 2009 that it would be beneficial for an external evaluation. The  
          evaluation was based on the Centre for Public Scrutiny’s principles of good scrutiny and  
          tested views from across the authority and its partners on the effectiveness of the four- 
          year programme. The bulk of the evaluation took place in January and early February  
          2010. The approach was based on a review of extensive documentation from the  
          Council and all health partners; a range of interviews with Members, Council Officers and 
          health partner’s personnel as well as an observation of the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting on  
          26th January 2010.  
 
          It is an important piece of work identifying both strengths and weaknesses as well as providing  
          recommendations for improvements to the Panel as we look to the 2010/2011 programme. In  
          response to this report the Scrutiny Team have put together an Action Plan which will guide the  
          way the Health Scrutiny Panel conducts its work over the next two years.  
 

  The evaluation recognises that Tower Hamlets has built strong foundations for its health  
  scrutiny function but there are improvements that need to be made. Particularly in relation to  
  improving the partnership approach to health scrutiny and developing the Health Scrutiny  
  Panel’s abilities and Member’s community leadership role. The suggestions will assist Members  

         and all health partners to make the journey as one contributor in the report is quoted “from good  
  to great.  

 
 
5. Health Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2010/2011  
 
5.1 Health inequalities remain a key challenge for the borough. Tower Hamlets is the third most 

deprived borough in the country and there are areas of deprivation in every part of the 
borough. There is strong evidence that areas with deprivation have worse health and greater 
health inequalities. The life expectancy for a boy born in Bethnal Green North is 8.5 years less 
than that for a boy born in Millwall, in 2006, the probability of survival to age 75 for a man in  
Tower Hamlets was 54% compared to 66% nationally. Although life expectancy is increasing 
and death rates appear to be falling steadily year on year. There is little evidence of a 
reduction in the gap between  

 
5.2 The Borough’s Community Plan explains how the Council will improve the quality of life in 

Tower Hamlets. The aspiration of ‘One Tower Hamlets’ runs throughout the plan and a key 
component  is to reduce the inequalities and poverty that we see around us, strengthening  

            cohesion and making sure communities continue to live well together.The HSP will support  
            the Tower Hamlets Partnership to build ‘One Tower Hamlets’ by : 
 

Ø Focusing on reducing the health inequalities that exist within the borough and 
narrowing the gap between Tower Hamlets and the healthiest parts 

Page 70



 

  of the country 
Ø Supporting people to lead healthier lifestyles 
Ø Making sure that health services are accessible –including at a time and place that 

suits residents 
Ø Recognising the strong links between health and other areas such as employment, 

housing and the environment 
 
5.5 The process for preparing a long list of items for the Health Scrutiny Work Programme has been 

to draw on a number of sources.  The Health Scrutiny Panel has key business, policy and 
performance items that it must respond to for example Tower Hamlets NHS Commissioning 
Intentions, responding and the Healthcare for North East London review.  Members of the Panel 
have been invited to comment on a draft list of items which includes the above and to suggest 
further issues.  As in previous years the Panel want to make sure that patient, users and local 
people influence how services are designed; therefore the Tower Hamlets Involvement Network 
(THINk)  was also involved in agreeing items for the programme. The three NHS Trusts were 
requested to feedback on possible areas to evaluate and where possible Health Scrutiny could 
add value to existing programmes of work.   

 
5.6    This year the Health Scrutiny Panel will look to carry out two challenge sessions in  
 2010/2011 with the possibility of a longer review later in the year.  
 
 
5.7   The challenge sessions agreed are:  
 

1)  Polysystems and Reconfiguration of Local Services – what this means for local residents? 
 

            This session will aim to: 
 

• Examine the local picture and what reconfiguration of local primary care and social care 
services will mean for residents.  

• Increase Member’s understanding around the key issues to enable them to use their 
community leadership role to communicate change to residents 

• Listen to local GPs and hear their opinions on the re-provision of local healthcare services. 
• Make recommendations on how we can better engage residents in this process and 

communicate change.  
  
           It will assist in addressing the challenges outlined in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  
           around service delivery and access to health services. As well as addressing those issues  
           around variation in health outcomes, the low uptake of screen services and the need to  
           integrate services by engaging residents and providing necessary information. There has been 
           a large clinical focus on polysystems and reconfiguration of health services over the last year  
           but there is still work to be done to engage residents which this challenge session will focus  
           on.    
 
           This session took place on 29th September 2010, the recommendations will be discussed at  
           the Committee meeting in October.  
 
      2)  Cancer – The development of preventative services - early diagnosis and rapid referral 

 
This session will aim to:  
 

• To support the improvement of life expectancy in the borough. Tower Hamlets 
has amongst the highest prevalence of risk factors for cancer in London.  

 
• To improve resident understanding and knowledge around this issue  

 
•  Address the important role Councillors and residents have to  play in their 

communities to prompt early diagnosis and treatment 

Page 71



 

 
 
 
            A challenge session would address the gaps identified by the 2008-09 report from Joint  
            Director of Public Health, Ian Basnett and Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2009  
            surrounding the low uptake of screening services.  In 2005 life expectancy in Tower Hamlets  
            was 75.2 in males and 80.2 in females. This is 2.1 years shorter in males and 1.3 years  
            shorter in females compared to England and ranks Tower Hamlets in the bottom 20% of all 
            local authorities. There were 614 new cases of cancer in 2006. Tower Hamlets has higher  
            rates of diagnoses of lung, cervical, bowel and stomach cancers compared to London and  
            national figures. There is a consistent pattern of poorer survival which may be linked to later  
            diagnosis. Cancer is a major concern that Tower Hamlets continues to be significantly off  
            target. It is a hard trend to shift and this is scrutiny challenge session would go some way  
            to intensifying efforts to improve early detection rates in the Borough.  
 
6         Other work of the Panel 
 
6.1 Over the next few years there are a number of policy developments and issues that will have  

an impact on health scrutiny and its work programme: 
 

• Care Quality Commission ( development of commissioner assessment)  
• Increasingly challenging financial climate. 
• Increasing integration (health and social care, NHS and local government, acute and 

community services – links to “Total Place”)  
• The Marmot Review (Opportunities for the Health Scrutiny Panel to consider the health 

issues outlined in its work).  
• The NHS White Paper (What this will mean for health care in Tower Hamlets) 
• Locally – Executive Mayor and Mayoral System 
• Further work with the Tower Hamlets Involvement Network (THINk) to increase 

resident participation and link its work with the HSP.  
 
6.2 The NHS is undergoing a period of unprecedented change and modernisation affecting the way 

health partners are developing and providing services to local people.  It would be helpful for 
the Panel to develop a deeper understanding of these changes to inform its role and work. 
These include: 

 
• The NHS White Paper (2010) – (including NHS Trusts gaining foundation trust status by 

2013) 
• Finance and funding of services including payment by results; 
• Commissioning; 
• Performance Management through Quality Accounts and the Care Quality Commission 

 
6.3    Outside of the main work of the Panel the two challenge sessions will be conducted with a    
         possibility of a longer review later in the year. Alongside a programme of briefings, seminars  
         and site visits to inform and develop understanding of the key health issues in the borough.  
         During the second year of the cycle, the Health Scrutiny Panel has proposed an in-depth  
         review looking at Mental Health services in the Borough.   
 
6.4    The proposed work programme for the next year is set out in further detail in Appendix 1. At the 

request of the Chair the meetings in January and March have been left clear to provide the 
Health Scrutiny Panel with a degree of flexibility given the current climate and major changes in 
health policy. Once the overall work programme is agreed, the scope and exact timing of issues 
will be developed in consultation with relevant NHS partners and services.  This will ensure that 
the work is focused and delivers its objectives.  A proposed work programme has also been 
included at Appendix 2 for 2011/2012. Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel will be invited to 
add to this plan throughout the year.  

 

Page 72



 

6.5  The implementation of past scrutiny reviews and recommendations will continue to be 
monitored. In addition, other issues may be identified as the Panel develops its programme and 
links with both NHS and community organisations.  

 
7. Role of Health Scrutiny Panel Members 
 
7.1  To maximise the value of health scrutiny in improving services Members of the Panel can play 

various roles. These include: 
 

• The Community Leadership Role linking with community groups, residents and LAP 
meetings to consult and engage residents – in particular deeper level of engagement with 
the Partnership work under the Healthy Community, Community Plan Theme; 

• The active promotion of health scrutiny and gathering of information from residents and 
community groups to raise with the Panel and Health Partners; 

• Undertaking an individual link role by liaising with health partners by visiting and meeting as 
appropriate and reporting back to the Panel. 

 
7.2       The changing role of community leaders, with more emphasis put on leadership of place  

rather than services highlights the potential for scrutiny in influencing and shaping the  
local area. With many services being jointly provided or commissioned scrutiny of  
partnership will be an area of growing interest for non-executive councillors looking to  
improve the overall quality of life for residents. 

 
7.3   Learning and development will also need to run alongside the rest of the work programme.   
             The Scrutiny Policy Team will be supporting Members to tailor this to their individual needs. 

 
8. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 

8.1  By virtue of the Health and Social Care Act 2001, duties were added to Overview and Scrutiny  
             Committees for Health Scrutiny Panels to review and scrutinise matters relating to the health  
             service in the authority’s area and to make reports and recommendations on such matters in  
             accordance with the relevant regulations.  
    
9. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
    
9.1 This report describes the draft two year work programme for the Health Scrutiny Panel (HSP) 

for municipal years 2010/2011 and 2011-2012. The government have recently announced 
changes to the delivery of health services in London particular the future existence of Primary 
Care Trusts (PCTS) that are likely to impact on the scope and nature of the proposed work 
programme of the Health Scrutiny Panel over the next two years and its associated costs. 

 
9.2 There are no specific financial implications emanating from this report, and any additional 

costs that arise from the work programme of the Health Scrutiny Panel, must be contained 
within directorate revenue budgets. Also, if the Council agrees further action in response to 
this report’s recommendations then officers will be obliged to seek the appropriate financial 
approval before further financial commitments are made. 

 
10. One Tower Hamlets consideration 
 

10.1 Tackling inequalities and reducing poverty is central to the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Health Scrutiny Panel and this is reflected in work around access to health 
services and work around health promotion and prevention.  Equal opportunities and diversity 
implications will be considered during each of the scrutiny reviews. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 1 – Health Scrutiny Panel Meetings  
 
2010/11 
 

 Panel Date Reports / Topic Method 

June 
2010 
 

• Induction Programme 
• Update on THINk 
• Work Programme discussion  

Presentation Meeting &  
Verbal updates  

July 2010 
 
 

• The NHS White Paper  
• Six Lives Panel Project  
• 2010/2011 Draft Work Programme  
• Health Scrutiny Evaluation Report - Action 

Plan 
• Health4nel response to INEL JOSC  
 

Verbal Update  
Report and Presentation  
Draft Report  
Report 
 
Report and Verbal update  
  

October 2010 • Access to GP services – the Ocean Estate 
• Joint Reporting of Complaints across all Three 

Trusts 
•  East London and City Alliance 

Commissioning Strategy Plan Update 
• THINk Patient and User Comments Report 

and Recommendations 2010 
• Update on Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  
•  HSP Work Programme 
 

Briefing  
Presentation  
 
Presentation/Briefing   
 
Presentation  
 
Report/presentation 
Report 
 
  

January 2011 
 
 

• Public Health White Paper  
• NHS Tower Hamlets – Operating and 

Commissioning Priorities 2010-2012 
• Update on Maternity Services at BLT  
• Transformation of Adult Social Care and  
      the Personalisation Agenda 
•  Update on Challenge Session  
  
 

 
 

Briefing/Presentation 
 
Report/Presentation  
Briefing 
Presentation  
 
Report  
 
 
 

March 2011 
 
 

• Excellence in Quality Strategy Report and 
Presentation, Barts and the London NHS 
Trust 

• Focus on Dementia (Adults Health and 
Wellbeing Directorate)  

• Update on Review and Challenge Session  
  
      

 

Report and Presentation  
 
 
Report and Presentation  
Briefing  

 
 
 
 

Page 74



 

 
 
 
 
Appendix 2 – Health Scrutiny Panel Meetings  
 
2011/12 
 

 Panel Date Reports / Topic Method 

June 
2011 
 

• Induction Programme 
• Update on THINk 
• Work Programme discussion  
• Mental Health Review  

Presentation Meeting &  
Verbal updates  

July 2011 
 
 

• 2011/2012 Draft Work Programme  
• Barts and London – Service Provision for 

Adults with Learning Disabilities.  
 

Verbal Update  
Report/presentations  
  

October 2011  
• HSP Work Programme  
• Joint reporting of complaints from all three 

Trusts  
• East London NHS Foundation Annual Plan  
• Mental Health Review  
 

 
Report  
Presentation  
Report/presentation  
 

January 2012 
 
 

• NHS Tower Hamlets – Operating and 
Commissioning Priorities 2011/12 

  
• Update on Review and Challenge Session 

Work  
 

 
 

Report/Presentation  
 
 
Report 
 
 
 

March 2012 
 
 

• Excellence in Quality Strategy Report and 
Presentation, Barts and the London NHS 
Trust 

 
• Update on Review and Challenge Session   

 
 

Report and Presentation  
 
 
Report and Presentation  
Briefing  

 
 
 
 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	4.2 Joint Report on Complaints across the three local Trusts - NHS Tower Hamlets
	Microsoft PowerPoint - Jointreportoncomplaintsfinalversionagendaitem2

	4.3 East London and City Alliance Commissioning Strategy Plan Update - NHS Tower Hamlets
	HSP Oct 10 v1
	ELCA CSP Final gap analysis (2)

	4.5 Update on Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Briefing and Presentation
	TH Self assessment Borough profile  agenda item 5a docx
	Microsoft PowerPoint - JSNAintroductionforScrutinyAgendaItem5b

	4.6 Health Scrutiny Panel  Work Programme

